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XVERE2 35 B 2 R E A A A 7 R X FTIR T 2 A

HERTT
RAHH
RRE® ME &6 FrisRn#E BE AR
Amcor Limited 1 R EEER 424,520,0001% e 38.95%
Amcor Packaging (Asia) 1 RIEHEE 424,520,0008% e 38.95%
Pty Limited
Amcor Fibre 1 EREEA 424,520,000 A 38.95%
Packaging-Asia Pte
Limited
BEEE EREBA 173,104,0008% e 15.88%
JP Morgan Chase & Co. REKE 76,895,0008% e 7.05%
TERR/RINERE 4560000%  fFA/AH 0.42%
Btk
M5

1. Amcor LimitedZ B 2177 BN B H X S AR QR LT © Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty
Limited &% Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte Limited &Amcor Limitedz 2 & B A 7] °
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Independent Auditor’s

Report
BWIZRBENEE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AMVIG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AMVIG Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
86 to 184, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BRMEZERERAR
(REAESHETMEALZBERAF])
Ex. 18
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s results and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 April 2009
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Consolidated Income

Statement
A=

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE-2R/\F+-A=+—ALEE

2008 2007
—EENE | _EELHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff THEx FHET
Turnover =E 3L 6 3,122,884 2,132,321
Cost of goods sold $HE AR (2,091,393) (1,442,837)
Gross profit EF 1,031,491 689,484
Other income H g A 6 85,816 B8,
Selling and distribution costs $HE Mo K A (206,940) (157,013)
Administrative expenses TR (198,165) (156,316)
Other operating expenses b (22,248) (8,372)
Non-operating expenses FLERL 7 (29,747) =
Finance costs A& AR 8 (62,855) (24,319)
Share of profit of associates JE (5 B i 1 ) g 172,878 71,152
Profit before tax Bt A F 9 770,230 467,947
Income tax expenses FrEHiFx 12 (147,160) (68,044)
Profit for the year 7N g A 623,070 399,903
Attributable to: BN & 75 FEfh
Equity holders of the Company RARRERTFBA 467,303 353,837
Minority interests DR R R 155,767 46,066
Earnings per share THRRAF
— basic (HK cents) — B AR (B 13(a) 46.0 43.4
— diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B) 13(b) N/A 78 A N/A 8
Dividends ’E 14 140,832 141,680




BRHERAER AR ZBENFER

Consolidated Balance
Sheet

HEEERRSR

At 31 December 2008 R-ZBEENE+=_A=+—8H
2008 2007
—BENE | T LF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo FHET TAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 15 1,306,618 1,153,872
Prepaid land lease payments FENEE L FIA 16 51,685 41,357
Goodwill GEES 17 3,955,617 2,751,773
Interests in associates i RN X 18 373,350 321,209
Financial assets at fair BAFEFABRZ
value through profit or loss SREE 19 5,658 320,050
Loan receivables JEUL B R 20 305,211 =
Available-for-sale financial asset AtEECMEE 21 1,557 1,481
Other financial assets HEthemEE 28 655 19,734
Other assets HE&EE 48,487 50,823
6,048,838 4,660,299
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 378,693 316,182
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E b ERFIE 23 873,050 834,224
Prepaid land lease payments JEAE L RIB 16 1,345 1,045
Prepayments and deposits FENREREZS 54,357 64,078
Other financial assets EthemEE 28 4,511 23,056
Pledged bank deposits 2HEARITER 24 98,047 73,913
Bank and cash balances RITRIREE 5% 24 898,899 811,038
2,308,902 2,123,536
Total assets EEHAT 8,357,740 6,783,835
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves BAR #E
Share capital [ 30 10,900 9,775
Reserves s 31 5,264,512 3,825,641
Equity attributable AABEEFEEA
to equity holders PEihRE =
of the Company 5,275,412 3,835,416
Minority interests LY R RER 299,802 257,190
Total equity B 5,575,214 4,092,606
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Consolidated Balance
Sheet

HRERERRR

2008 2007
—BEENE | _ZEZLF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities EkRBERE
Bank borrowings RITER 26 796,883 1,083,049
Obligations under finance leases S TS A 27 18,633 34,834
Other financial liabilities Hiv S pBE 28 27,290 190,812
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE 29 68,262 31,837
911,068 1,340,532
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFKIE 25 923,479 947,857
Current tax liabilities AEAFIE A E 35,989 28,417
Current portion of bank borrowings ~ $R1TE 2 iR EEB1D 26 842,491 355,962
Current portion of obligations mEREREY
under finance leases Mk k=) 27 16,103 18,461
Other financial liabilities HEtemaE 28 53,396 =
1,871,458 1,350,697
Total liabilities BEAH 2,782,526 2,691,229
Total equity and liabilities EakaERE 8,357,740 6,783,835
Net current assets RBEEFE 437,444 772,839
Total assets less current liabilities EEAFERRE A & 6,486,282 5,433,138

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2009
RZEZNFOA+-REEEGHE

Chan Chew Keak, Billy Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis
B TR

Executive Chairman Executive Director
HITEE HITEFE
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity
GeEBExR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_TT)\F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR AREHEAEE
Minority
Share Share  Exchange Revaluation  Hedging  Retained Statutory interests Total
capital premium reserve reserve  reserve profits  reserves Total ¥ equity
B& RGEE  EXRE Efffe  HHEE REEN IERR @  RREE  ERAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TR THETL TRAL  THT TAL AL THL TR THETL

At 1 January 2007 i S 2
—-A-H 7,837 1,661,610 33,027 8,010 = 429,178 35,094 2,174,756 122,491 2,297,247
Tranglation differences Bz = = 283,333 = = = = 283,333 12,940 296,273
Loss on cash flow hedges ReRHREE = - - - (138,906) - - (138,906) - (138,906)
Net income recognised BREMERTZZ
directly in equity WAFE - - 283,333 - (138,906) - - 144,427 12,940 157,367
Profit for the year REERT = = = = = 353,837 - 353,837 46,066 399,903
Transfer to profit or loss SmH e
on cash flow hedge eS|
(Note 28) (Hz28) = - - - (13429) - - (13,429) - (13429
Total recognised income KEEEER
and expense for the year WAR 8% - - 283,333 - (152,385) 353,837 - 484,835 59,006 543,841
Transfer from BEARE
retained profits bt
- Group - - - - - (58,600) 58,600 = = =
- Associates - - - - - (7,002) 7,002 - - -
Repurchases of shares
(Note 30(c) 62) (69,118) - - - - - (69,180) - (69,180)
Dividend paid for 2006
(Note 14) - - - - - (100,310) - (100,310) - (100,310)
Dividend paid for 2007
(Note 14) - - - - - (54,685) - (54,685) - (54,685)
Dividend paid to
minority interests - - - - - - - - (18,665) (18,665)
Acquisttion of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 94,358 94,358
Issue of new shares
(Note 30(b)) 2,000 1,398,000 - - - - - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
1,938 1,328,882 - - - (220,597) 65,602 1,175,825 75,693 1,251,518
At 31 December 2007 i S 2
+=A=t-A 9,775 2,990,492 316,360 8,010  (152,335) 562,418 100,696 3,835,416 257,190 4,092,606
Translation differences BREER = - 166,138 - - - - 166,138 13,372 179,510
Gain on cash flow hedges bRl € - - - - 72502 - - 72,502 - 72,502
Net income recognised BRENEREAL
directly in equity IN:L - - 166,138 - 72502 - - 238,640 13,372 252,012
Proft for the year AER T - = - - - 467,308 - 467,303 155,767 623,070
Share issue expenses BFIRBAX
(Note 30(d) (KzE300d) - (1,438) - - - - - (1,438) - (1,438)
Transfer to profit or loss ReminER
on cash flow hedge E35
(Note 28) (FitzE28) - - - - 17,778 - - 17,778 - 17,773
Total recognised income AEEEHER
and expense for the year WARX % - (1,438) 166,138 - 90275 467,303 - 722,078 169,139 891,417
Transfer from #RaRE
retained profits Pt
- Group -5& - - - - - (38,398) 38,398 - - B
- Associates -HERR - - - - - (13,793) 13,798 - - -
Dividend paid for 2007 F=Z3+5F
(Note 14) (WizE14) - = - - - (8599%) - (86,995) - (8,9%)
Dividend paid for 2008 P 3 JIY:S
(Note 14) £ ([f314) - - - - - (93,964) - (93,964) - (93,964)
Dividend paid to TOERR
minority interests Enfke - - - - - - - - (116,311)  (116,311)
De-registration of BB
a subsidiary B AR - - (1,331) - - - - (1,331) (10,216) (11,547)
Issue of new shares BITHR
(Note 30(c)3(€) (ME0RE) 1125 398,883 - - - - - 900,008 - 900008
1,125 898,883 (1,331) = - (s150) 52191 T8 (16527) 591,191
At 31 December 2008 i LS
+=A=t+-H 10,900 3,887,937 481,167 8,010 (62,060) 796,571 162,887 5,275,412 299,802 5,575,214
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Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement
mel&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-_ZZNFT-_A=1T—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE | BT LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM REEBCRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 75t Al g A 770,230 467,947
Adjustments for: FATIEE (EL A% -
Share of profit of associates FEAG B & A B Al (172,878) (71,152)
Finance costs A& KA 62,855 24,319
Impairment losses on receivables FEWFIE 2 R B B 1R 14,686 7,718
Write down of inventories WO 7 & 14,633 2,827
Depreciation e 135,437 70,259
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment X B 1A 5,528 2,210
Interest income AEMA (20,623) (13,850)
Amortisation of prepaid FEMAELRIEBE
land lease payments 5y 1,185 545
Fair value loss/(gains) BAFEFABRZ
on financial assets at fair value TRMEEZATE
through profit or loss E#E (=) 1,067 (14,164)
Loss on de-recognition BUBERERIZ A FE
of financial assets at fair value FFABRZEREEZ
through profit or loss 518 16,531 =
Loss on de-registration BUEGEM—HRB AR Z
of a subsidiary B8 13,216 =
Unrealised profit on closing ERABEAREETEZ
inventories sold to associates, net RE T % F (1,203) (1,850)
Operating profit before Rt EEES BRI 2
working capital changes K T 840,664 474,809
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm SR (53,857) 46,478
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 & H b R EIR
and other receivables B (35 n) 51,786 (158,672)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments  FEfT 318 R iz (3G h0) R
and deposits (25,846) 25,707
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 & H th fE S IR
and other payables R /18 (265,331) 71,636
Cash generated from operations RELLEEFHNRE 547,416 459,958
Income taxes paid EENR I (112,580) (55,255)
Net cash generated from REKLEEBHIR )T
operating activities 434,836 404,703
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Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement
e RER

2008 2007
—EBENE | _ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx T T
CASH FLOWS FROM REFH RS FR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IR IR 1T 7 3R 0 (24,134) (2,814)
Purchases of property, plant BEYE  BERRERER
and equipment and prepaid land FEEE L FE
lease payments (125,367) (213,038)
Payments of deposits for other HEMEEZE] &R
assets (12,473) (42,405)
Dividend received from associates B R E R E 131,440 45,258
Proceeds from disposals LEWE BE K
of property, plant and equipment RBFERIER
and prepaid land lease payments FENHEE L E 8,391 7,124
Payment to minority interests BUH s — KB A A
on de-registration of a subsidiary DEPR R E S T (10,216) =
Interest received B Y F & 20,623 13,850
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 17) &I B A &) (FizE17) (698,007) (121,412)
Acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year _t 4 & W BT E A 7] (149,061) (51,940)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAIHEESREE
financial asset - (1,481)
Purchases of financial asset BEZATEFAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss CREE - (305,886)
Net cash used in investing activites ~ FRIEE EEHIR & /F58 (858,804) (672,744)
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Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement
mel&RER

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM METH2HESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment for repurchases of shares BRI 15 < 43X - (69,180)
Proceeds from issue of shares AT P 1S 5008 700,002 =
Share issue expenses paid BEETROAY (1,438) =
Bank borrowings repaid EEIRITER (427,191) (119,261)
Bank borrowings raised EHRITER 618,643 1,116,890
Payment of obligations B R EASE 2 TR
under finance leases (18,559) (83,320)
Interest paid B AT HE (66,328) (23,150)
Finance leases charges paid ENREHEEER (1,921) (1,169)
Dividend paid to equity holders ENARRERIFEEARE
of the Company (180,959) (154,9995)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders & fx 2> £ A% 54 %5 B 2, (116,311) (18,665)
Net cash generated from REREESHIREFE
financing activities 505,938 697,150
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERASEB/YZBMFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 81,970 429,109
Effect of foreign EXEH B
exchange rate changes 5,891 44,966
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—BzBHERBEELZEY
AT 1 JANUARY 811,038 336,963
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-ZHA=+—HzER&RK
AT 31 DECEMBER ReZEEY 898,899 811,038
ANALYSIS OF CASH RERBEEEU2 A4
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B AR 898,899 811,038




GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
27 November 2003 under the Companies Law of
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 1803-04, 18/F, Li
Po Chun Chambers, No. 189 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
37 to the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2008. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting polices and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial instruments, which are
revalued at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4 to the
financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.

(A) CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
has control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds
of the sale and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any goodwiill relating to the
subsidiary which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income
statement and also any related accumulated
exchange reserve.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised profits on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(A)

(B)

CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Minority interests represent the interests of
minority shareholders in the operating results
and net assets of subsidiaries. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
and consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of profit or loss for the year between
minority and shareholders of the Company.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interests in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such
profits are allocated to the interests of the Group
until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
GOODWILL

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary in an acquisition are measured at their
fair values at the acquisition date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(B)

(C)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
GOODWILL (continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing.

The interests of minority shareholders in the
subsidiary are initially measured at the minority’s
proportion of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities at the acquisition date.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and
operating policies of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
has significant influence.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(C) ASSOCIATES (continued)

98

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method of accounting and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwiill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If
the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognised its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(C)

(D)

ASSOCIATES (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
represents the difference between the proceeds
of the sale and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any goodwiill relating to the
associate which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income
statement and also any related accumulated
exchange reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

TRANSLATION
() Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s presentation currency. The
functional currency of the Company is
Renminbi (“RMB”).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(D) FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATION (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates ruling on the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses resulting from this
translation policy are included in the
income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments classified
as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the revaluation reserve in
equity.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@ETHR (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(D) FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATION (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

(D) ShE R (45)

(i) RFSREBRHER

(continued)

- Income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@ETHR (A&

POLICIES (continued)

(E) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (E) BERIE

102

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except goodwill, inventories,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and other financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(E) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(F)

(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of recognised or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods
are recognised on the transfer of significant risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@FrER (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(G) GOVERNMENT GRANTS (G) ExFFARL
A government grant is recognised when there is BT R A G IR E AN R E S
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply FETEMNB GG RAERE
with the conditions attaching to it and that the AU 2 BE B TR o

grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as RETAEBEREEEARX
compensation for expenses or losses already S ETIB A (E AR T B B 7%
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate EEM BETBA BB
financial support to the Group with no future BUERE - Thp Epk A mT IR
related costs are recognised as income in the FEAE R BAA o

period in which they become receivable.

(H) BORROWING COSTS (H) EEEF
All borrowing costs are recognised in the income PR (8 B RN FE H A A BRI
statement in the period in which they are Wzs 3= T LAMERR o
incurred.
(I RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ) ARBRATESE
EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research activities is recognised T 9T T2 B S0 B A BRI
as an expense in the period in which it is RAERE -
incurred.
(J) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS V) EREF
() Employee leave entitlements () EEEEZRY
Employee entitlements to annual leave and BB 2 F R ERRD
long service leave are recognised when BREANEEESE T
they accrue to employees. A provision is R BEHEHEB IS
made for the estimated liability for annual 1B B TR 2 IR i &
leave and long service leave as a result of EzFEBEEBRRBR
services rendered by employees up to the Bz fhEt B ED T IRE
balance sheet date. 1 e
Employee entitlements to sick leave and EEZRBRERSS
maternity or paternity leave are not RN E B R RETS
recognised until the time of leave. R -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(J) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the
income statement represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(K) TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of current tax

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable

profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

profits as reported in the income statement

because it excludes items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and

it further excludes items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is

calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@FrER (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(K) TAXATION (continued) (K) RIE (&)

106

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(K) TAXATION (continued)

(L)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@FrER (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(L) PROPERTY, PLANT AND (L) %  -EERKRH

108

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 2 - 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and machinery
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant assets, and is recognised in the income
statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(M) INVENTORIES

(N)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realised value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realised value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

RECOGNITION AND
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(N)

(0)

RECOGNITION AND
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability recognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in the income statement.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale
of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within
the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are either investments held for
trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. These investments are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in the
income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(O) INVESTMENTS (continued)

(1)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets not classified as
trade and other receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised directly in
equity, until the investments are disposed
of or are determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in equity are
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement for equity investments
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not subsequently reversed
through the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement
for debt instruments classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently
reversed and recognised in the income
statement if an increase in the fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price in
a active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(P) TRADE AND OTHER

3. EEEETHER (&)

(P) BARHEMEYKREA

112

RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in the income statement
when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(Q) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(R)

(S)

For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments

are set out in (s) to (u) below.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are stated initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(T)

(V)

V)

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE
ACCOUNTING

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the contract date and are subsequently
measured at fair value.

The Group designates the derivatives as hedges
of a particular risk associated with a recognised
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and effective as cash flow hedges
are recognised directly in equity. Any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement. The Group’s policy with respect to
hedging the foreign currency risk of a firm
commitment is to designate the hedging
relationship as a cash flow hedge.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(V) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE
ACCOUNTING (continued)

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or
forecasted transaction results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or a liability, then, at the
time the asset or liability is recognised, the
associated gains or losses on the derivative that
had previously been recognised in equity are
included in the initial measurement of the asset
or liability.

For hedges that do not result in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or a liability, amounts
deferred in equity are recognised in the income
statement in the same period in which the
hedged item affects the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or the hedge no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for
forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in
equity is retained in equity until the forecasted
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to
the income statement for the period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(W) LEASES

(i)

(1)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of
the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of
the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as obligation
under finance leases. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to
each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are
depreciated the same as owned assets
over their estimated useful lives.
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TEGRER (E)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(X) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT X) BRiFRERRAR

LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@FrER (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(Y) RELATED PARTIES (Y) REAL
A party is related to the Group if: FER—FMBATIER - BIR
BAEEBEAT

()  directly or indirectly through one or more () ZmAZEB—HExZEF
intermediaries, the party controls, is NAaE - BESEEE
controlled by, or is under common control BIAER - XAEEE
with, the Group; has an interest in the Sl EmAREEZRE—7
Group that gives it significant influence P RAEEERE
over the Group; or has joint control over #@o WA EERERY
the Group; KEBTFEERTE

77 SR E BN
H

(i)  the party is an associate; iy ZHBRBERT

(i) the party is a joint venture; iy ZmAREERT:

(v) the party is a member of the key (v) ZABRABREGA
management personnel of the Company or AIZETEERAEHF
its parent; —HAKE

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of ) ZH AN (vt 2
any individual referred to in () or (iv); MATZREZER

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, V) ZmAA—HER B
jointly controlled or significantly influenced sk 5 2 (iv) 2k (v) BT 3t 2
by or for which significant voting power in AR A T HE 6 H [
such entity resides with, directly or Bl S (v)sk(v) AT i 2 fE
indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or MATEZSREEEZ
(v); or ERIFERTZE NN

BRBEEARERE X

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit (Vi) %A BKRILEERERET
plan for the benefit of employees of the rEl AREENEB
Group, or of any entity that is a related REBFEALTZERNE
party of the Group. BEERBAMMR -
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3. TEEFTHBUR (&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(2) SEGMENT REPORTING (2) "EBE2EK

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing
products and services (business segment), or in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary
reporting format and geographical segments as
the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to the segment.
Unallocated costs mainly represent corporate
expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of
property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments, other assets, inventories, trade
and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank and
cash balances. Segment liabilities exclude
primarily obligation under financial leases and
other financial liabilities.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between Group
enterprises within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based similar terms as those
available to other external parties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(Z) SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

(AA)EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Events after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the balance sheet date or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
financial statements. Events after the balance
sheet date that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

3.

\

FE=

g

TR ()

inljlg

(2 SMEHK (&)

DREARFIERABEATET
AERES Bz EE
ERBEEVMENEE) IE
HEZRARBE -

AAFEHEHESER

SRR B E B R
R 2 OV ER R AR S
BB BRI TINY 2
EEAESERAREE -
FEBH R AR R - TR
AREEGEAEEENE
EX - A HEEI S
B -

when material.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND 4. EEHET N EEMEET

KEY ESTIMATES

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION THREMFZEERF
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other TXAmABRARZ EFBRERR
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance EEH 2 HMEZTHE MK
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a R MZEBRZRTEEEFE
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets BYT-UWBFECEERAREIR
and liabilities within the next financial year, are HERELERFAERZEXNEAR

discussed below.
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4. BREAE N EEEET

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY ESTIMATES (continued) (4&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FrREMHZEERIRF
UNCERTAINTY (continued) (&)

(a) Property, plant and equipment and (a) VX BEREMERE

(b)

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values, and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives or residual values are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value. The carrying amount of goodwiill
at the balance sheet date was approximately
HK$3,955,617,000. Details of the Group’s
goodwill are stated in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

(b)

AEBETEYME  BELER
At A E A - FIERE
BERBBTERS - RRHE
TIRBEBLUEE R E 2
X BEERBZERAER
FHRRGEEBELRE
H e ERMERFHRFREE
HEREEE TR - EEA
BRETMERXIKBCER
Sk E A A T L B B S SR B
B 14 2 B 1 M SOMORR

maERE
ErEEERRERGEES
BB s ReEFEELM 2 EA
BE  TirEFEREER - K
SERMHZRELBAE
EZRKBRRE  WAHE
AR EAEHIRE - REE
H ®BEBEZ2EEAENAR
3,955,617,000/8 ¢ ° A EE
pd s N R e e
FE17 0
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND

4. BREAE N EEEET

122

KEY ESTIMATES (continued) (4&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AHE M ZEERF

UNCERTAINTY (continued) (&)

(c) Impairment loss on trade and other c) BERHEMEBEKRERE
receivables and loan receivables KERZEERR
The Group makes impairment loss on REBREE S REAELGR
receivables based on assessments of the T8 & JE WL B SR A] U [ 1 BT
recoverability of the trade and other receivables - BEE—EBACEESE
and loan receivables, including the current B R WK IE S 50 8% AR
creditworthiness, the past collection history and m (AnA) 1E e WHIE 2 B
securities (if any) of each debtor. Impairments E1E - HEH BB LET
arise where events or changes in circumstances RN R BIEARIE © B
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. RIEWGRIE 2 REBES Z2E
The identification of impairment loss on HH BT R ET S - WA B
receivables requires the use of judgement and BRIR&HET - BIBE=ERE
estimates. Where the actual result is different 1 ERZEFTRE 2 FEN
from the original estimate, such difference will B 5 REHAMEWFHBERERE
impact the carrying value of the trade and other SR WRTEE LA R FE U IR 2 R
receivables and loan receivables and impairment BEE -
loss on receivables in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

(d) Allowance for inventories and net d FREBRFRVERS
realisable value of inventories &

Allowance for inventories is made based on the
aging and estimated net realised value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-down/write-back in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

T EBETIRTE 2R KRG
A EEEEE  BESE
ROt 75 Z1E S FIET SR AT o
EEBERB IR SENEET -
Al EB BT EN Rtk
804 [E W13 S RO IR E (B K i
BB E o
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4. BEHAE M EEEE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY ESTIMATES (continued) (&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FrEEMLCEERF

UNCERTAINTY (continued) (&)

(d) Allowance for inventories and net (d FREMRFRATERS
realisable value of inventories E (&)

(continued)

Net realised value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expense. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to the
severe market environment. The Group will
reassess the estimates by each balance sheet
date.

FEZAZRFEEAEERS
B Z R E BRI RT T
ZRARHERX - E At
REESMRAREERFEER
BEMZBELRME @ &
REF mREE LT HF R
EEIETRIEL 21 T8 M A E
REE - AEFEFREHEER
CIER L S E AR

(e) Fair value of derivatives (e) FTEIAZAFE
As disclosed in Note 28 to the financial WANEA SRR 28FT B
statements, the assumptions for determining the PTHETAERFEZAFHRE
fair value of derivatives are made based on TIGFTMAIR AREEE - I
quoted market rates adjusted for specific MITEZRTIREERAE -
features of the instrument.

() Income taxes () FE{R

Significant estimates are required in determining
the provisions for income taxes and deferred tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

AR PRSI SR TN IR B R
RAEEFTETAENMGEE T
- EHBXBBIETARS
RPRFE - RREOBRBIR
ERETHEMN - MEELH
RN R ERNRYIFCEE
MERFHEEZR  ARERR
HEETE BRI AEL
TMRBRBELTE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The directors have established
management policies, guidelines and control
procedures to manage the Group’s exposure to such
risks.

(A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of respective Group entities,
such as HK$ and USD. The Group had entered
into currency swaps to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency risk arising from certain of its
HK$ and USD bank borrowings (Notes 26 and
28). The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other
foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging other significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

5.

R TR
REEZEEFEERHSETBHE
w - BREINER - BERR - F
ERK  RBESRBR KT ER
%o AEE T EEBRBRERTEE
ARERMTISREBRZEZRE
KEEREHAEBHBREAE
ERFEE EFCHEMEEK
R HESIRIERIRRFUEEARAEE
HH N ZERR

(A) 9b %5, Bz
HRAEEETERRS &
ERBRMEESEEEEIE
BN B (T RE
TO)ETE  MAREEHET
SNEERBR o NEEEFTSINE
HEE R EEE TETRE
TLERFTIE R (M 5E26 K% 28) i
EEZINERR - AEBEBR
WEHHEMINER S - BE
REBERINEEIRBUR - A&
% = 1) 85 5 = AN R B K
o WA R EREEER
HAh 8 AINE R -
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5. IKEREIRE (&

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (A) ShEEmBE (&)

(continued)

At 31 December 2008, if the RMB had
weakened 7% (2007: 7%) against HK$ and USD
with all other variables held constant, the impact
on profit after tax and other component of the
equity are summarised in the following table. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
7% (2007: 7%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number indicates an increase in profit
and other equity. If the RMB had strengthened
7% (2007: 7%) against HK$ and USD with all
other variables held constant, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on profit after tax and

RZEBEENF+ZA=+—
H - MAREEBETRETE
B7% (ZEELF 1 7%) - &
BREMABEARRETE ¥
B 18 B 2 E A g 2w 5010 2 &2
BRI R o WHURE DT
BREREBINEGIEERIEHR
RIETE RIS ME A 2 HNE =
B WRERRT% (ZTZE+
F:7%) ZINEEER G B)HE
Hig® o EHRE R REM
REZRIL AN o i AREEEE TR
ETHEIR(ZETLF -
7%) + BREREAM T EERRE
T - TR R R E A

SR EARERETZE - M
TIESRE AR -

other component of the equity, and the balances
below would be negative.

Impact of HK$ Impact of USD
B En¥
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BEN\F |—TTLF |=BEN\F |2TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TAT FERx TAET

Profit after tax T 18w 22,0380 21,3280 6,667% 3,4510
Other equity Hfh i 31,2580 33,0110 46,485 48,6520
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(A)

(B)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
(continued)

(i) This is mainly a result of the foreign
exchange gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loan
receivable, bank and cash balances, trade
and other payables, bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases
denominated in HK$ and USD not subject
to cash flow hedges at year end.

(i) This mainly arises from the changes in fair
value of derivative instruments designated
as cash flow hedges in relation to the
Group’s bank borrowings.

PRICE RISK

The Group’s equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date and expose the Group to equity
security price risk.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the balance sheet date.

If the prices had been 5% higher/lower, the
Group’s profit after tax for the year ended 31
December 2008 would be increased/decreased
by approximately HK$283,000 (2007:
HK$16,002,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

MR EE (&)

(A)

(B)

SheEmpE ()

) HWFEIEHFRKIL
BEHRSREH B
BT RETTFHEZ R
RFEFAABRZZ SR
BE - RKRER - RTT
KB ek BHRE
T FRIE ~ ERATIE K
KEEHERECZER
WER AT

iy WFEFEREEALE
SEBRTERZBEESR

Hih 2 OTAE T ERFEE
FBFTEL o
(B R B

AEEZBARERBRER
FEA ARG SWEAE - R
EEERRATEIE - &4
SEEE SRS H B RER -

AN BREE S TIRENAEE
Bz BB R R AR -

WEE EF T¥%E% » A&
BEHE-_TT/\F+=-A=+
—EiiFZﬁ%Eﬂ%ﬁm
/EA#1283,000 7T (=

+F 1600200@%75)0
EEF&Q?@JAE@Zi
MEEQNFEEBIMY -
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BisREMEIE (&
(continued)

(C) CREDIT RISK (C) EEmE

The carrying amount of the bank and cash
balances including pledged bank deposits, trade
and other receivables, deposits and investments
and loan receivables included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has policies in
place and the exposure to credit risk is managed
through the application of credit approvals,
credit limits and monitoring process. The
Group’s senior management performs on-going
credit evaluation and regularly reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is
limited because the counterparties are mainly
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Loan receivable from employees as disclosed in
Note 20 to the financial statements will be repaid
when the shares awarded to the employees,
which are held by an administrator appointed by
the Company, are disposed of. The Group’s
senior management performed regular review on
the recoverable amount of loan receivables to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised.

RAREERABRABRECIER
RITFERZIRNE RIRITAERR
B85 REMEWRFIR - BE
BRE R WSR2 REE - B
AEEGESREEMY 2K
=BIEERR -

AEEVESAEREER
o BRERARESOBERZH
FHREF -

AEENEERBRIESRE
BZRWFE - NEERI B
B WHEBHZEE - BilE
EREEEEFEREER
o AARISMEREREL
TEERE - EMEMEREE
AESHERBZ FJREIEEE - A
R AR @ 2 BT HERE
EHRERE °

BITRAS R ISERARE
B EAHTHEEAEER
TRRBRTEETRZE
7 o

BT ER R M L 20 AT R BR 2 FE LR
BEEFR  HRETEE (A
RRBRBZEBATR) Z
By HEREEER - NEEZ
= A E 2 E T B E A K
ZAIWEl B FE - ARERIER T
SR ERIR -
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. iR EIE (&

N

(continued)
(D) LIQUIDITY RISK (D) R ENE & M b2
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REEZBERERERREA
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure LBz B EemE - I
that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to REAFEZUAETEBEEERER
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and ERSESHTE2HEMHE -
longer term.
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial rEESRAaBE BB
liabilities is as follows: UM
Less than Between Between
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years
-FR —ZEZfF —EEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT TAET FAET

At 31 December 2008 R-EBENF
+=BA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 896,250 725,092 93,177
Obligations under finance lease BE T EAE 17,151 11,964 7,289
Trade and other payables BEHREMBENFIE 923,479 - -
Other financial liabilities Hiepai 53,396 27,290 -
At 31 December 2007 R-BEtHF
+=A=t+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 355,962 493,970 589,079
Obligations under BEERE
finance lease 18,461 16,001 18,833

Trade and other payables BHREMBEMFIE 947,857 - -
Other financial liabilities Hthemas - 77,438 113,374
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MR ER (&)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(E) INTEREST RATE RISK (E) #I = & b=

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits and bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The Group’s
bank deposits and bank borrowings of
approximately HK$494,952,000 (2007:
HK$538,584,000) and of approximately
HK$22,565,000 (2007: Nil) respectively bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are
subject to fair value interest rate risks. The
Directors consider the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk on bank deposits and bank
borrowings is not significant as interest bearing
bank balances and bank borrowings are within
short maturity period.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The Group had
entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against
cash flow interest rate risk of certain bank
borrowings (Notes 26 and 28). The critical terms
of these interest rate swaps are similar to those
of hedged bank borrowings. These interest rate
swaps are designated as effective cash flow
hedges of interest rate risk.

REERBFITFRLIBITER
LA&@%%E%%FﬁExW%
B o ANEE ZIRITFRRIR
mﬁ?kﬁﬁumz%wzt,%zooo
B (Z 2 ZFE £ F
538,584,000/ L) K4 B
22,565,000 T (ZEZT £
F | RETEFERE
WEE N FEMNERRE - BR
AT ERTTHE R RIRT TS FREIH
HIRRE  MEERAAEERA
IRITHF R RIRITIE R M E L 2
MERBKFLTERK °

7

AEBZReERMNERBREE
BT BERATE I Bl & 1 &
BERE - REEDET A KRR
HR LA e TSR 1T 18 3k (T &
261%28) 2 R & A E R R
ZEN TR B2 F R ARFREART
b 2 RITERELRMU  1bF
ME T AN XRER 2B
MR mEHITE -

129



AMVIG Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the

Financial Statements
R ¥k =MoL

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B8R EIE (&

NE=

(continued)

(E) INTEREST RATE RISK (continued) (E) FIFEmMBE ()

130

At 31 December 2008, if the interest rate had
been 100 basis point (2007: 100 basis point)
lower, with all other variables held constant, the
impact on profit after tax and other component
of the equity are summarised in the following
table. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding bank borrowings, obligations under
finance leases and interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges and adjusts the
respective interest rates at the year end of 100
basis point (2007: 100 basic point) A positive
number indicates an increase in profit and other
equity. If the interest rate had been 100 basis
point (2007: 100 basis point) higher, with all
other variables held constant, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on profit after tax and
other component of the equity, and the balances
below would be negative.

R-FEAE+ A=+
B - % TR 00E S (F
T 100EH) - BREL

MR EAER B 2 ERT
R - LEBRE DT EIER
BIRIRITIER - MEHEEAIE
KMIEE MRS REH 2 FKig
Hl - WRFRF\BBENE
10052 (ZZ2Z+4F : 100&
Bh) o IEBBR N K H A4
EIB A0 o K £ FH100E B,
(ZZZ+F - 100EEH) @ &
REMAERAZRSIE - 15
BB R AR A E
EHREREEE - M &R
HRAE -

2008 2007
—EENF | ZZTTtHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit after tax Fi1e s 7 5,1140 3,6130
Other equity Hfth i a3 (13,806) (23,031)®

(i) This is mainly a result of the decrease in
interest expenses on bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases not
subject to cash flow hedges at year end.

(i) This mainly arises from the changes in fair
value of derivative instruments designated
as cash flow hedges in relation to the
Group’s bank borrowings.

) WEEXIEAFREIL
BEELBRESRED ZR
TTERZ M B 5 X e At
BHEAE TR -

(i) WFEITBHEE/N
SEETERZRER
HhzTETARTE
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. iR EIE (&)

(continued)

(F) FAIR VALUES (F) &2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AEEZEMEEREHRAR
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the ZIEHETFEEEAEBRN
consolidated balance sheet approximate their R - BEEAZATFEMNA
respective fair values. Ao

6. TURNOVER AND OTHER 6. =FRFLEMPA

INCOME

The Group is principally engaged in the printing of REBXE2RELSEDRIM K

cigarette packages and manufacturing of transfer/ B IEERRES R ]S - AE

laminated paper and laser film. An analysis of the B EERBRAMBADTOT

Group’s turnover and other income is as follows:

2008 2007
—BENE | _ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
Turnover R
Cigarette packages BIER, 2,796,994 1,830,536
Transfer/laminated paper ﬁiiﬁy/ %’E IR GR
and laser film 325,890 301,785
3,122,884 2,132,321
Other income E A
Gain on sales of paper $HE Aok 2 W as 14,148 4,683
Gain on sales SHE R 2 s
of scrapped materials 15,951 5,529
Interest income F B U A 20,623 13,850
Compensation received B U a8 1,804 1,056
Commission income A ON - 4,769
Fair value gains on financial BAFEFABRZ
assets at fair value TREEL
through profit or loss NSRRI E - 14,164
Government grants received B U BT =R 4,373 4,359
Exchange gain, net 5 e - FE 23,230 1,194
Sundry income HMIEWA 5,687 3,727
85,816 B8
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o M
7. NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 7. IERERX
2008 2007
ZEBENFE | _ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Loss on de-recognition BUBTERIZ A T EFFAERZZ
of financial assets at fair value ~ & FIEE 2 E18
through profit or loss (Note 20) (B 5£20) 16,531 =
Loss on de-registration BB —FEREB ARz EE
of a subsidiary 13,216 -
29,747 -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. LA
2008 2007
—EBENE | _EELHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx T T
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFIE 74,672 37,381
Finance lease charges RERES N 1,921 1,169
76,593 38,550
Fair value gain on FlEEE 2 AFE
interest-rate swaps: Was
Cash flow hedge IR & 7R
(transfer from equity) (EEAER)
(Note 28) (Pff 5 28) (13,738) (14,231)
62,855 24,319
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. A&
The Group’s profit before tax is stated after charging AEBZFAHFENBRIATIE
the followings: g :
2008 2007
—EBENE | _EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T T
Auditors’ remuneration ZERD B
— current —REE 3,700 3,500
— under-provision in prior year ~ — FFEBET R - 200
3,700 3,700
Impairment losses on receivables & 48 518 2 i (B /&5 18
— trade receivables — & Gl FRIAE 1,764 648
— other receivables — Efb W SRR 12,922 7,070
14,686 7,718
Write down of inventories WoRFE 14,633 2,827
Cost of inventories sold (Note a) $8& 7&K & (HfsFa) 2,091,393 1,442,837
Depreciation e 135,437 70,259
Loss on disposals of property, & « HE &
plant and equipment Bl SE 5,528 2,210
Operating lease rentals Bt - BFR
in respect of land, Bl
buildings and equipment HEHES 27,229 15,767
Staff costs including B TR A
directors’ emoluments (BREEZMS)
- Salaries, bonuses — %% - EA KRR
and allowances 247,553 159,089
- Retirement benefit — RKTE T B K
scheme contributions 11,099 8,506
- Cash-settled —REHEEURN A
share-based payments 7R
(reversal)/expense (#m|) Fx (7,258) 7,258
251,394 174,853
Research and it 75 K A B A AN
development costs 6,789 6,376
Fair value loss on financial BEAFEFAERZZ
assets at fair value TREEZ
through profit or loss NEEEE 1,067 -
Loss on de-recognition BUBfERIE A TFE
of financial assets at fair value ~ it ABZZSREEZ
through profit or loss =gz 16,531 =
Loss on de-registration BUH s — Rt B AR 2
of a subsidiary &5 18 13,216 =

BRHERAER AR ZBENFER
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. Fimim#] (&)

Notes: B 5E
(a)  Cost of inventories sold includes the following which (a) HEGFTEXRABRENIIZNE B
are included in the respective amounts disclosed BREEAFEANES>HABEEZ
separately above for the year: HEEd o
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Operating lease rentals KEHERS 17,833 8,568
Staff costs B TR 156,064 91,258
Depreciation e 116,256 61,146
Research and W 9% M G B Bk AN
development costs 5,065 6,170
Write down of inventories WoRFE 14,633 2,827
= = 7 — —
10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10.FEFZNESRTHAER
PaN
EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS &
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the T BRI LR REER B
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong ERIEC S o1
Companies Ordinance are as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FATT
Fees Fiakc
Executive directors WITES 491 491
Non-executive directors FRITES 892 842
Independent non-executive BUIEHMITES
directors 2,210 2,210
Other emoluments H b2
Executive directors WITES
- Basic salaries, allowances —EAFHESE R REMEF
and benefits in kind 8,150 10,580
- Retirement benefits — ROKAE FIET B R
scheme contributions 36 63
11,779 14,186
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10.8F EFTHAES

B

(continued)
The emoluments of each Director for the years ended BRESREE_ZTZENFR=Z
31 December 2008 and 2007 are set out below: E+F+ZRA=+—HIFE N
SHEHINAT
Salaries Retirement
and benefits
other scheme
benefits Discretionary contributions
Fees HER bonus BEEF Total
ne HitER [k HEMR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THT THT FET
Name of Director EERF
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy LRELE 491 - - - 491
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Rt 12 5% 4 - 2,000 1,200 12 3,212
Mr. Ng Sai Kit St E - 1,500 900 12 2412
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis FEREHE - 1,650 900 12 2,562
Mr. David John Cleveland Hodge David John Cleveland Hodget & 437 - - - 437
Mr. Saw Kee Team, Alan BB E 376 - - - 376
Mr. Jerzy Czubak (Note a) Jerzy CzubakZt £ (i ta) 79 - - - 79
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith HEEE 754 - - - 754
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BGRELE 729 - - - 729
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEERE 727 - - - 797
Total for 2008 —22)\F8%E 3,593 5,150 3,000 3 11,779
Salaries Retirement
and benefits
other scheme
benefits Discretionary contributions
Fees 4R bonus  EBHRER Total
ne HiE# MEEL TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THL FHL FET
Name of Director EEpg
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Bily RELE 491 - - - 491
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Bt gL - 2,000 2,400 12 4,412
Mr. Ng Sai Kit Rt AEE - 1,500 1,800 12 3,312
Mr. Li Wei Bo (Note b) FRKELE (o) - 616 - 27 643
Mr. Li Shui Dang (Note ¢) FRELE (e - 514 - - 514
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis FEREHE - 1,250 500 12 1,762
Mr. David John Cleveland Hodge David John Cleveland Hodge%t & 437 - - - 437
Mr. Peter Roderick Downing (Note o)  Peter Roderick Downing5t 4= (F 5 d) 197 - - - 197
Mr. Saw Kee Team, Alan (Note )~ BRI/ %5 4 (i ste) 208 - - - 208
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith HEEE 754 - - - 754
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BlERELE 729 - - - 729
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEERE 727 - - - 727
Total for 2007 “TRLERE 3,543 5,880 4,700 63 14,186
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10.EEZENERITHAER
NZAN ==
EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS & (&
(continued)
Notes: (@)  Appointed on 16 October 2008 fzE: (@ RIZZEZENF+TA+TAN
HEZE
()  Retired on 30 April 2007 ) RZTEZELFMWA=+
HiERE
()  Resigned on 7 April 2008 © RZIZEENFMNALH
BT
(d)  Resigned on 13 June 2007 @ RZZTEZLEFRAT+T=
HEHE
)  Appointed on 13 June 2007 e RIZEZELFERAT=
HEZE
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during FAREBZAEERSHTALTES
the year include three (2007: five) directors whose B-R(ZEZTLF AA) AE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented T RBEZMERBREEXATZ
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2007: DA EBME(ZTETLF
Nil) individuals are set out below: m|)ANTZ2BeEmT
2008 2007
—BENE | —ZETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx T T
Basic salaries and other benefits 7N 5 & K H 48 Fl 2,649 =
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 950 =
Retirement benefits RIRTE A ET B R
scheme contributions 24 -
3,623 -
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B & F T3 & E
Number of individuals
BAAE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ JT £ 2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,000/ JT £ 3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

11.

EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

There was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year. In addition, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the Directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,000 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) are
members of a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.
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EENERITHAE

10.

11

A=~
= (A=

B

FRAYBESHELRBRELM
ez 25 - 1o - NEEWES
fHEFEMNEEIERSHAL
EREMAREE K INARL Z 2R
SRR 2 M -

GRIRAE AR E

AEBERBEFERIME RS S
GO ABEEMAERERERRILR
I REEREE ([RESEE]) -
AEER BB 2 HKIIRE
BEHENTEZ%E - B4k
S8 A LRA1,0008T - fEH®RE
TRTEIHFR - HRANBRREEF

A o

AEERPEARKLNE ([HE])
ALz B AR 2 B8 R TT mIK
EEZHRBEREFTEIRE - It
EMBERRANEEEAFERT
BEzETAN AR RERSF S
HHERRRBRES - DK
FEEAREZENBARMARE
RARFENEER ZBRIKEMES -
It EH B AR R REAREEEZ
B ERREFEELAFH

o
A °
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

12. 15 R <

2008 2007
—EENF | —TTLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Hong Kong Profits Tax BB NFH 1,019 5
PRC corporate income tax R B ST AR

— current — BN &R 116,746 70,158

— over provision in prior year — FFEBEREE (981) (264)
Withholding tax (Note 29) TE 1B (i 3E29) 33,406 =
Other deferred tax (Note 29) M3 RE 18 (P 5£29) (3,030) (1,855)

147,160 68,044

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2007:
17.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
(“New CIT Law”), which became effective from 1
January 2008. Under the New CIT Law, the standard
corporate income tax rate is 25%, replacing the
previous applicable rate of 33%.

BE-_ZZEN\F+_A=+—8I
FE Ty ph T FERBS F1)3216.5%
(ZTZTLF 175%) RMERE S
FIEBIEL B E -

RZZEZEF=A+H  ZBA
RAKRKEHEFBBEMFVIX
(AEEMBHA]) YEB=F
ENF-A—BRER - BREHD
EFRRBE  BELEMBERES
25% @ BURSTAT Z @A R 33% o



12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(continued)

On 26 December 2007, the State of Council of the
PRC passed an “Notice on the Implementation of
Corporation Income Tax Transition Preferential
Treatment” (“Notice on Transition Period”) Guofa
(2007) No. 39 (“Circular 39”) which sets out details of
how existing preferential income tax rates will be
adjusted to the 25% standard rate under the New CIT
Law. According to the Notice on Transition Period,
certain PRC enterprises of the Group with tax holiday
not fully utilized will be allowed to continue to receive
benefits of the full exemption from a reduction in
income tax rate until expiry of the tax holiday, after
which, the 25% standard rate under the New CIT Law

will apply.

Circular 39 also states that the existing preferential
income tax rate of 18% in 2008 pertaining to certain
subsidiaries will be adjusted to the standard rate of
25% in 2012 progressively.

The relevant tax rates for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
before the tax holiday range from 15% to 25% (2007:
15% to 24%).
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12.FB3HAX (&)

RZBETE+F+-A=-+/"H &
BB it idim (BN B EMER
BEEBBRRMBEM) ([EEHB
40)) Bl EE (2007) 395% ([ K39)) -
P REI S ERERE
BRITEEMEREFAEZ25%IT
ERE - BRIBBERBAN  A5H
ATHREMGEREEBRBERT
® o OBREBEEZZAMERRRZE
HRRESR  BEEEEBERILE
HERBERANCEMSRIEZ25%
TEAERL R o

3B K397 AT AR B35 TP /B X B AE B
—EZN\FHE1BREBMFH
ERBETSHEE_T—_F225%

ZAHREFL K o

REBTEMBRARRZEREE
BRI 2 BEBRENT15%E25% (=
TEHF  15%E24%) °
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(continued)

Further under the New CIT Law, from 1 January 2008,
non-resident enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC but
whose relevant income is not effectively connected
with the establishment or a place of business in the
PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on various types of
passive income such as dividend derived from sources
within the PRC. As the entire Group’s foreign-invested
enterprises are directly or indirectly wholly or partial
owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate
of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this
withholding tax on dividend according to
Comprehensive Arrangement for the Avoidance of
Double Taxation on Income and Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion between PRC and Hong Kong, and
Guoshihan (2009) No.81.

According to the notice Cai Shui {2008} No.1 released
by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation, distributions of the pre-2008 retained
profits of a foreign-invested enterprise to a foreign
investor in 2008 or after are exempt from withholding
tax. Accordingly, the retained profits at 31 December
2007 in the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises’
books and accounts will not be subject to withholding
tax on dividend at 5% on future distribution.

12.FB3HAX (&

BEAN - BB EMBRE - A=
TENF—A—B EFBIEAN
KBRS - BAT - KT EIR
MRS - SRR EE Z TSI
ANELE AR B3R AT R - BT
BREERBMBZIFERELE - KA
HEEHERA QURRRBIEANZ
B8 B0 1£10% (Br FEIR BB E R )
BMTEMBIE - ARANEBAAIN
AR ET R —HEBFEMKL
ZHBRAREZKEEEE RN
BA - BURBRCRHt S SR € AT
BB EEHBAD ERRM
Z ) R B 1# (2009) 8155k + FEAR
MFHELEENREERA R R
5% e

BEFEIERBERBHELREITZ
B %6{2008} 19540 - SNEIRE D E
RZTTNFHZERAINEIEEE
DIRZEE )\ F R ZARE & F EF
REMTENRIE - FAt - AEEZ
HNEIRE 2 IRM RIR B FTYI 2
RZZTLF+-A=+—HIRE
w M B AR AR RS KR B RN5% .2
TEMBIIE o
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12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES
(continued)

A reconciliation between the income tax expenses and

12, FT18

% (A

P15 750 9 S S35 A g 1) 3 DA 28 PR 7%

the product of profit before tax multiplied by the K2R ZEEWT -
applicable tax rate is as follows:
2008 2007
ZEENE | BT LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit before tax 758 Al ) 770,230 467,947
Tax at applicable ZE AT E25%
tax rate of 25% (2007: 15%) ZTEFE - 15%) 2K 192,558 70,192
Tax effect of share FE A B % ’D\ Ebia¥ild
of profit of associates T 7% (43,220) (10,673)
Tax effect of non-taxable income H78 % %R HSU\Z MG e (8,783) (2,509
Tax effect of non-deductible AR EZ 2 B 2
expenses 65,602 34,006
Tax effect of unrecognised REREREEB I MIETE
temporary differences 1,227 (1,345)
Tax effect of unused tax losses THERAE) AR IBEE 2
not recognised g s 2 5,159 7,003
Tax effect of tax concession MIBE R R FGRE 2 B2
and tax refund (90,419) (88,955)
Over provision in prior year FHEEBREEE (981) (264)
Withholding tax B IE 33,406 -
Effect of different tax rates EHMADEERKE 2
of subsidiaries operating K /8~ &) B i AR
in other jurisdiction TRMEZ 2 (7,389) 10,585
Income tax expenses FriSfiF X 147,160 68,044
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13.

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)  Basic earnings per share is calculated based on
the Group’s profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company for the year of
approximately HK$467,303,000 (2007:
HK$353,837,000) and the weighted average
number of shares of approximately
1,015,902,000 ordinary shares in issue during
the year (2007:814,684,000 shares).

(b)  No diluted earnings per share are presented as
the Company did not have any potentially diluted
ordinary shares for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007.

DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid during the year ended 31
December 2008 were HK$86,995,000, being final
dividend of HK8.9 cents per share for year 2007 and
HK$93,964,000, being interim dividend of HK8.9
cents per share for year 2008. The dividends paid
during the year ended 31 December 2007 were
HK$100,310,000, being final dividend of HK12.8
cents per share for year 2006 and HK$54,685,000,
being interim dividend of HK7 cents per share for year
2007. A final dividend of HK4.3 cents per share in
respect of 2008, amounted to approximately
HK$46,868,000 is proposed by the board of Directors
and subject to approval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 May 2009.
The proposed final dividends are not recognised as
liabilities at 31 December 2008.

13.

14,

FRE

(@ BEREARBRFITIERFEZAR
NEl = A ARG R4
467,303,000 8L (ZEE+F
353,837,000/ 70) & F R E 2
TERBR . MEFHIREL
1,015,902,000 (ZZEZ
F 1 814,684,0000%) 5+ &

b) BRARABE_ZZN\EFR
—EREF+-A=1T—HL
BAEEHBREERT

g
HE-_ZTTZNF+-_A=+—HI
FERNZM 2% B A86,995,000/5
TEIZETEF 2 REREAER
8.9/81l1) % 93,964,000/5 70 (Bl ==
SENFzHRHEREATRS.OE
i) - B=2—FTLF+=—A=+—
AEFERAIRNZRER
100,310,000 7t (Bl ZZTEXF 2
KREFAFIR12.8751(L) K& 54,685,000
B (EI=F 7t¢2$ﬁﬁﬂx§ﬁa
BR7BW) - EEEBR_TTNF
FA-ZT+AABRTZRERAFRSE
FEBRRE T )\FERAKSE
F4.358M - BB i\%ﬁi’w%
46,868,000/ 7T ARSI E I
HE o %ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ&%m@:
TEN\F+-_A=+—RAzZEE -
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14. DIVIDENDS (continued) 14. 0% B, (48
2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Interim dividend paid B IR B
of HK8.9 cents HR%8.978 11l
(2007: HK7.0 cents) (ZEZLF : 7.081)
per share 93,964 54,685
Proposed final dividend R R B AR 2
of HK4.3 cents Zh%4.37 1L
(2007: HK8.9 cents) (ZEZLF : 8981
per share 46,868 86,995
140,832 141,680
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. 9% ~ ME L& B
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Plant and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT HENELE  BEREE  BOZEE EL ] EEIR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TETL TETL TATL TATL TR TEL

Cost HE
At 1 January 2007 RZESLE

—-A—-H 22,940 8,876 500,815 16,189 13,634 - 562,454
Acquisition of subsidiaries N 100,492 - 313,949 16,024 6,160 12,273 448,898
Additions RE 1,416 446 131,081 2,384 4,842 108,918 249,087
Transfer B4 4,191 183 13,440 124 193 (18,131) -
Disposals/write off HE/HH (1,565) (15) (9,944) (2,008) (5,798) (527) (19,947)
Exchange differences ELEE 4,881 614 56,987 1,440 1,032 3,329 68,283
At 31 December 2007 RZZTtE

+ZA=t-B 1323% 10,104 1,006,328 34,063 20,063 105,862 1,308,775
Acquistion of subsiclaries ~ WEMBAF

(Note 17) (H17) 12,780 - 51,759 8% 2,486 1,023 68,944

Additions RE 357 33,565 35915 4,584 6,525 95,244 176,190
Transfer -t 59,254 3,250 98,936 6,520 - (167,960) -
Disposals/iwite off e/ - (6,444) (11,393) (1653) (,407) - (21,897)
Exchange differences ELEE 6,909 583 49,985 1,619 935 5,067 64,998
At 31 December 2008 RZZTNE

TZB=+-H 21165 41,058 1,231,530 45,929 27,602 39,236 1,597,010
Accumulated depreciation B3t i7E
At 1 January 2007 RZETLE

—A-H 1,120 2,454 68,037 7,582 7,530 - 86,723
Charge for the year REENE 2,352 1,693 59,487 3,700 3,027 - 70,259
Disposals/write off HE /W (124) - (3314) (1,709) (5,466) - (10,613)
Exchange differences ERER 152 226 7,01 525 360 - 8,534
At 31 December 2007 RZZTtE

+-A=1-H 3,500 4,373 131,481 10,098 5,451 - 154,903
Charge for the year TEENE 8,900 2,933 111,623 7,205 4776 - 135,437
Disposals/write off e/ (99) (3692) (2,761) (876) (550) - (7.978)
Exchange differences ERER 215 184 6,923 431 277 - 8,030
At 31 December 2008 RIBENE

TZA=+-H 12516 3,798 247,266 16,858 9,954 - 290,392
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2008 RIBENE

TZAZT-H 199,139 37,260 984,264 29,071 17,648 39,236 1,306,618
At 31 December 2007 RZZTtE

+-A=t-H 128,855 5,731 874,847 23,965 14,612 105,862 1,153,872
The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC. REBZEFIIMNRFE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. 9%  ME NM&E

EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2008, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment held by the Group
under finance leases were approximately

HK$128,069,000 (2007: HK$148,279,000) (Note 27).

The Group’s property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately HK$328,886,000
(2007: HK$64,310,000) were pledged as security for
the Group’s banking facilities (Note 33) as at 31
December 2008.

The Group’s total minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as

(/'L§
R-ZBEENEF+-_A=+—H ' K
SERBEREVERBE2YE - &
B NEEE 2 IR E{E4) A128,069,000
BIL(ZEZLF : 148,279,000/%5
7o) (B15E27) « AEERBEEN A
328,886,000 L (ZEZ L F :
64,310,000/ 7T) 2 ¥1% - B K&
HEEREAREER-_ZSZENF
+ZA=+—BZRITEE (M
33) 2\ o

AEBERBIAIHBELEHEZE
WREHERIELBENT

follows:

2008 2007
—BENFE | 2T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Within one year —F R 2,998 2,443

In the second to F_EZERF
fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEME) 7,391 =
After five years HFE 14,782 =
25,171 2,443

The Group leased out certain buildings to a related
company under operating leases. The average lease
term is 14 years (2007: 1 year). All leases are on a
fixed rental basis and do not include contingent
rentals.

AEBERELEHERN —HEER
AEEETET  HOHFHR14
F(CEZLE: —F) -FAHEE
HUBEEE SEE - TEEXA

145



AMVIG Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

146

Notes to the

Financial Statements
R ¥k =MoL

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE

16. T8N H & + 1 5E

PAYMENTS
2008 2007
—BENFE | 2T LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TAT
At 1 January R—H—H 42,402 13,117
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 2 )

(Note 17) (Bt=E17) 9,704 27,727
Additions nNE - 211
Amortisation of prepaid TEfT A&+ Hb FRIB 2 B 4E

land lease payments (1,185) (549)
Exchange differences fE X =58 2,109 1,892
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 53,030 42,402
Current portion mENERD (1,345) (1,045)
Non-current portion IER B2 1D 51,685 41,357

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent

payments for land use rights in the PRC under

medium term leases.

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments with

carrying amount of approximately HK$29,486,000

were pledged as security for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 33) as at 31 December 2008.

AEE 2 ANEE L KIAEE S
HHEREZHBE L EREZN

Eo
A °

7 5 B IR H B 4 £ 29,486,000/ 7T
ZENBEELHHRIBD BTIERA
SER_FTENF+_-_A=1+—H
ZRITIEE (M5E33) < A& -
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17. GOODWILL 17. 2=
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2007 A\ ZET+F—H—H 1,276,615
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 BE B /2B 1 | 1,293,183
Exchange differences I 181,975
At 31 December 2007 RZZET+F+-_A=+—H 2,751,773
Adjustment to fair value of TFERBEHB AR
net assets of subsidiaries BEFEATFEARE
acquired in prior year 149,061
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 BE Bf /2B 1 A 938,670
Release on de-registration BE T — [ B B8 A B i 5 el
of a subsidiary (21,500)
Exchange differences WE N ER 137,613
At 31 December 2008 RZZETZNF+_A=+—H 3,955,617

During 2008 the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Purple Art Limited (“Purple Art”), which
directly owned 100% equity interest in Hangzhou
Weicheng Printing Co. Limited (“HZ Weicheng”) at a
total consideration of RMB350,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$400,006,000) which was satisfied
as to approximately HK$200,006,000 by the allotment
and issue of 34,189,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company at an issue price of HK$5.85 per
share (Note 30(e)) and as to the balance by cash. The
adoption of HK$5.85 per share as the fair value of
shares issued by the Company at the date of
exchange was based on a fair value assessment made
by the board of Directors, taking into consideration all
aspects of the acquisition and significant factors
influencing the negotiations. The board of Directors
considered the published price of the Company’s
shares at the date of exchange is not a suitable
indicator of fair value of the shares issued for the
acquisition due to the thinness of the market of the
Company’s issued shares.

RZZEENF - KREBUWEPumple
Art Limited ([Purple Art]) - HEH
BB MMNEREIRIBR AT ([HM
BR1) 100% M 2 25 B B 1T
A R E R AR350,000,000 (+
£ 1 47400,006,000/8 7T) * FEBIA
FHR5.858 T 2 BITER B REBIT
XA 7)34,189,000% & B I {E0.01
7B IT 2 #ER 1 (BT 5E30(e)) X 1449
200,006,000/ 7T + M gREE R LAIR &
T - RAEMKE.85F L AR AR
RR 5 BEMETRN 22 FE -
DEREFELKEREIBS T ER
TEEmMIERNAERE  FIELHZ
ANFEFE - ARARRBBITR
HMERRER  HEFTERAR
5 BEAAR R BIRG 2 R 1E I et U
BATRITRNZAFEZEEE

e
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17.GOODWILL (continued) 17. 582 (88
REBTUWETHVASEBRAR
(THF]) 225%% 1 K& I1&E
EHERAF ([MEIE]) 249%MHE -
RED B AARB290,000,000
(B #7330,632,000/8 7T) K 49
311,321,000/ 7T,

The Group also acquired a 25% equity interest in Sure
Rise Group Limited (“Sure Rise”), and a 49% equity
interest in Smart Apex Group Limited (“Smart Apex”)
at a consideration of RMB290,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$330,632,000) and approximately
HK$311,321,000 respectively.
REBERSGHEWEEEFEKMR

The net assets acquired from the various transactions,

148

and the goodwill arising, are as follows: EECHENT :
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before
combination
EOAT Fair value
W AT Z adjustments Fair value
REE AFEAR AFE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Net assets acquired: EWBCEEFHE:
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE
(Note 15) (M45E15) 54,761 14,183 68,944
Interest in an associate PR E AR Z#ER 146 - 146
Prepaid land lease payments FEMEE B
(Note 16) (MizE16) - 9,704 9,704
Inventories "E 25,671 (2,384) 23,287
Trade and other receivables B 5 MEAMERRIE 105,298 - 105,298
Prepayments and deposits R FRERIES 1,350 - 1,350
Bank and cash balances RITRRSHEH 150,977 - 150,977
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A FE K8 (240,953) - (240,953)
Current tax liabilities REABITE B & (2,833) - (2,833)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) EER T8 B & (FT:E29) - (5,600) (5,600)
NET ASSETS EERE 94,417 15,903 110,320
Goodwill on acquisition KEmE 938,670
Total consideration HWRE 1,048,990
Total consideration, satisfied by BRE - ATA AR
Share consideration &t R E 200,006
Cash consideration BeRE 841,953
Direct cost relating BB A2 EERA
to the acquisition 7,031
1,048,990
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WIHEL ZFEHEM
Cash consideration paid EXMZRERE (841,953)
Direct cost relating to the acquisition HIIEE R 2 EERA (7,031)
Bank and cash balances acquired BB RITRBE &% 150,977
(698,007)




17. GOODWILL (continued)

The new subsidiaries and associates contributed
approximately HK$91,142,000 to the Group’s turnover
and approximately HK$19,389,000 to the Group'’s
profit after tax for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisitions had been completed on 1 January
2008, total Group turnover would have been increased
by approximately HK$213,841,000 and profit after tax
for the year would have been increased by
approximately HK$45,027,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indicative turnover and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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17,

2 (45)
FHBEARLEE AT R EWER
EHEEOSMAREEEEBR
1% @ F 9 B E B 4791,142,0007%
7T X #919,389,0005# 7T °

WRER-ZZEZNEF—A—HA=
Ko AREBBEEBEBIZE MY
213,841,000/ 7T + G E i = i
H#N4945,027,0008 7T  HEE R
EHFAAS  AOETNBER
—EEN\F—F—HEXAEEE
BRI EEEREEERE - 1
TARIBRIARR 2 54 -
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units
(“CGUSs”) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. Before recognition of
impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwiill

mE (F

B R T & BT R R
R D RE AR I E BN
AtmERSELSN (ReEs
Bhr)) - ERRABARN - BE
BEESRIT

><r

had been allocated as follows:

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHEIT
Printing of cigarette packages & /ZE &% ENFI
Qingdao Leigh-Mardon SERSHBEERAR
Packaging Co., Ltd. (IE&5REARL)
(“Qingdao LMPP”) 202,812 192,997
Beijing Leigh-Mardon Pacific IRBEARTEFBEEARAA
Packaging Co., Ltd. (Me=2EH1)
(“Beijing LMPP”) 50,230 47,799
World Grand Holdings Limited EREEARAR (MEE]) &
(“World Grand”) and ERREZEFHAR QA
Kunming World Grand Colour (TEHER]D
Printing Co., Ltd.
(“Kunming World Grand”) 1,235,667 1,175,866

Xiangfan Jinfeihuan Colour
Packing Co., Ltd. (“XF Jinfeihuan”)
Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited
(“SZ Guilian”) and
Shenzhen Kecai Printing

BRSRIRVEBREERAF]
(MrE#EMIR]) 68,923 59,141
FINEEEEDNRIA R A 1(( RIINERE]) &
IR B ERA

(FEIBEZD)

Co., Ltd. (“SZ Kecai”) 615,193 527,875
Bengbu Jinhuangshan 38 5 F 1L 4] hir BN
Rotogravure Printing Co., Ltd. ARAR (MHFESFE L)
(“BB Jinhuangshan”) 204,085 175,118
Changde Goldroc Rotogravure BESIEMRER B R A
Printing Co., Ltd. (“CD Goldroc”) (f =emD 630,142 540,702
HZ Weicheng, Sure Rise and MMNERK « BFEREIE
Smart Apex 936,085 =
3,943,137 2,719,498
Manufacturing of transfer/ BE SEEREHERSE
laminated paper and laser film
Xian Great Sky Laser Hologram A AKRKBNEGRER AR
Co., Ltd. (“Xian Hologram”) (MAZARX]D 1,150 1,094
Zhaotong Antong Package BMAZBREMBBRAR
Material Co., Ltd. (“ZT Antong”) ([RBs@Zzml) 11,330 10,864
Changde Jinfurong Aluminum BREeRREERERRAR
Foil Packing Material Co., Ltd. - 20,317
12,480 32,275
3,955,617 2,751,773
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. 78 & (18)
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined REeEABMHNPIKE B IEE
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions REFTEMEE - FHEEBENEZ
for the value in use calculations are those regarding FERIDERMEER - HBREER
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross AR EMNEREEE - A%
margin and turnover during the period. The Group EHA KRR TISEEBEEE
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that BRREEESMU 2EERR 2T
reflect current market assessments of the time value of BT ATRL IR R A ETRLAER K - 78
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Budgeted BEMEREEFBAURBBEER
gross margin and turnover are based on past MBS ERETE
practices and expectations on market development.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from AEBGREBERERAFHES
the most recent financial budgets approved by the AT B R R 2 S BB
directors for the next five years with the residual period BEE - MHTHEARERERE
using the growth rate of range from 2% to 5% (2007: NF2%E5% (ZEELF : 5%) #
5%). B
The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows are REMBEBEARSREZLEN
as follows: ™
2008 2007
ZEENE | BT LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Printing of cigarette packages % 1& & 2 EN ) 13.4% 14.3%
Manufacturing of i EERRIRS R R
transfer/laminated paper
and laser film 13.4% 14.3%
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18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. NEtE N Al 2
2008 2007
—EBN\E | TT4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FE T
Unlisted investments in the PRC: RAERZIELETHRE
Share of net assets JE{EEEFE 373,350 321,209

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December RZZEZENF+ZA=F+—H " K

2008 are as follows: SEBERRIZHBERT :
Percentage
Place of Particulars of of interest
incorporation/ registered held/profit Principal
Name operation capital sharing activities
FrsREs
MR, gl
=E =4 EMERFE BatE FTEEK
Nanjing Sanlong PRC US$2,100,000 48%/48% Printing of
Packaging Co., Ltd cigarette
(“NJ Sanlong”) packages
ER=-EBEERAR HE 2,100,000% 7T 48% / 48% BEBE
(MFam=E]) EN il
CD Goldroc PRC RMB163,052,000 48.85%/45% Printing of
cigarette
packages
BiELNS i AR¥163,052,000 48.85% /45%  BERE
1l
Sure Rise BVI US$100 25%/25% Investment
holding
W RERAES 100ET 25%/25% BREZER
Smart Apex BVI US$100 49%/49% Technology
supporting
&g RBELZES 100%7T 49%/49% Bl ik
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18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. Nt ‘Z A R 2 HEam
(continued) (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the REFZBERNR ZHBEEREE
Group’s associates is set out below: wmr
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BE a& s Y 2= =

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$EO000  HK$'000  HK$EO000
TR TR TAET TR TAET

2008

—EENE
100 per cent 1,301,696  (480,865) 820,831 1,708,676 373,426
BHOZ2—H
Group’s effective interest 574,216 (200,866) 373,350 776,148 172,878
AEBZERER

2007

—EFLHF

100 per cent 1,009,829  (315,091) 694,738 646,733 152,317
BHZ2—H

Group’s effective interest 470,906 (149,697) 321,209 303,593 71,152
AEBZERER
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19.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 10. 1 A FEFAERZ
A=Y =
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR T RE E
LOSS
2008 2007
—EBN\F | ZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T T
Equity securities, at fair value fEARFES - LAFE
Listed in Hong Kong REB LM - 313,324
Listed outside Hong Kong REBLAINETH 5,658 6,726
Market value of listed securities EmEHE s TE 5,658 320,050
The above financial assets are designated as at fair LS RMEERTZEREITIETE
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. BIEATEF AR -
The fair values of listed securities are based on current FHBESFCAFEINEREAE
bid prices. FTE o
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20.LOAN RECEIVABLES

On 18 June 2007, the Company adopted an
employees’ share award scheme (the “Scheme”)
under which shares (the “Awarded Shares”) of the
Company may be awarded to certain employees of
the Group (the “Selected Employees”) in accordance
with the terms and conditions imposed by the Board
of the Company. The Scheme is valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing on 13 June 2007.
Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, an administrator
has been appointed to administer the Scheme and

hold the Awarded Shares. On or after the vesting date,

the Selected Employees shall be entitled to sell in
whole or in part of his/her Awarded Shares through
the administrator and receive the gain on the disposal
of his/her Awarded Shares, being the excess of sales
proceeds over the acquisition costs of the Awarded
Shares purchased by the Company, together with the
related income attributable to the Awarded Shares
disposed. Accordingly, fair vale of the Awarded Shares
of approximately HK$313,324,000 was recognised by
the Group as at 31 December 2007.

In June 2008, the Company made clarifications with
the Selected Employees on certain terms and
operation mechanism of the Scheme. In summary:

(@) Neither the Company, the administrator nor the
Selected Employees shall have any voting rights
to the Company’s shares purchased by the
administrator to the Scheme.

(b)  All the beneficial interests and risks of the shares
purchased under the Scheme are designated to
the Selected Employees upon the purchase of
the Company’s shares.

20. FE B X

R-ZZZTLFNA+=8 " AR
%m—ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁmﬁaﬂﬁ
) 5 B ARFAREARRQT
EEZQHT 2R REERASEE
ATERE([EREEBETFTRH
([EZERMD]) - BB T +F
NAT=ZBRBEREES - BH
T o RIBFTEFRA - EEAEE
ZEEEFERIFEEBRS - B
BEAMN R BEREERER
”ﬁAﬁ%ﬁ 203k 2B 1 42 B Ak
P ICER Y H SR AR () 2
ﬁ’%ﬁE%@ﬁEEL$ T%
ERERNDCBEKNAZSHE -
H%ﬁ%ﬁ@hﬁﬁﬁZﬁ%W
A Bt AEBR =TT LF+
ZAZt+—BEREERHZAF
{B#7313,324,000/8 7T °

_\

RZZZNFRA  KARBAEE
REBBEE T IRR S EFH
B o BEME

@ ARE - EBAREEESH
THRAABEEAMBE 2R
RERAD Z B RERE -

b)) REEARBRMRE  RE
BB E 2B 2 — B mkE
RFBEEES -

155



AMVIG Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

156

Notes to the

Financial Statements
R ¥k =MoL

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

21

(c)  The funds made available by the Company to
the administrator (the “Fund”) for purchases of
Company'’s shares in accordance with the
Scheme are advances made by the Company to
the Selected Employees.

After the aforementioned clarifications, the Company
considered that the Fund made by the Company to
assist the Selected Employees to purchase the
Awarded Shares should be accounted for as loan
receivables from the Selected Employees. The loan
receivables, bear interest at average fixed rates of
approximately 3.5% per annum and will be repaid
when the Awarded Shares are disposed of. Any gain
or loss on disposal of the Awarded Shares shall be
accounted to or borne by the Selected Employees.
Accordingly, the Fund was de-recognised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loan
receivables are recognised when the clarified Scheme
became effective and as a result a net loss of
approximately HK$16,531,000 was recognised during
current year.

.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

FINANCIAL ASSET

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a club
membership in the PRC.

As no quoted market prices in an active market is
available, the available-for-sale financial asset is
carrying at cost less any identified impairment.

20. R E K (4B

21.

© ARARREAEEEARLRF]
BRomEERARKRZESR
(MEx))  RARBREERE

BREft 2 85K -

REBLMEFEER  NRARRR
RRAHRHIABNE R (B 8 18 B 2R
Bz ETREIIFRKEERREER
R o EUE IR TG EEFMEL
3.6%&T 5+ MASH EERIA D & h B
fE3& - HE RO 2 E RS
BIESEREEEEMENHER
BEAYE - Fitt - ESLCBURER
REATFEFABEZEREE -
W BRI A MR ERERE
o BAMRAFEARRBERFED
16,531,000/ 7T ©

AfEESREEE —RURNTE
HEFE -

AR IR BT IS RE - AT H
SR EERRAR AR 2 R
Bk o



22.

23.
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INVENTORIES 22 178
2008 2007
“RENF | CTTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Raw materials R AR 196,788 158,853
Work in progress ERE 74,209 47,793
Finished goods BIEK oh 107,696 109,536
378,693 316,182
TRADE AND OTHER 23. 8 5 & H Ath g W 5k 18

RECEIVABLES

The general credit terms of the Group granted to its
trade customers range from one month to three
months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the senior management. An
aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the
invoice date, net of allowances, is as follows:

AEBEBTESEP 2RI — &
NF—Z=ER - ~AEEHNFHE
BAS SR EERUKKIE - RRE
BETHETAHGER - BHRI
PR (RBE ARG ERE) 2k
e

2008 2007
—BENE | T LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAT

Current to 30 days ENH#AZ=30H 427,489 398,716
31 to 90 days 31Z290H 133,908 236,111
Over 90 days #B3iE90H 40,702 113,618
Trade receivables B 5 ERFIE 602,099 748,445
Bills receivables (Note 33) & U = 5% (P 5£33) 152,066 58,758
Other receivables H b fE U FRIB 118,885 27,021
873,050 834,224
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23. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

An analysis of allowance for estimated irrecoverable
trade receivables is as follows:—

23. B 5 N B Ath [ 5K TE
(/“/%\?_

B RT AT U [ & 5 e W sk TR 2 B
DT —

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2007 RZEE+F—H—H 218
Allowance for the year FERE 648
Exchange differences bE 3 = & 43
At 31 December 2007 R_ZTTLF+-_A=+—H 909
Allowance for the year FEEE 1,764
Write off 1 85 (1,860)
Exchange differences ME W Z R 73
At 31 December 2008 RZZBENGF+ZA=+—H 886

As of 31 December 2008, trade receivables of
HK$40,702,000 (2007: HK$113,618,000) were past
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. An aging analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

R-—ZEZENF+=-_A=+—8"
40,702,000 T (ZE T L F -
113,618,000 70) 2 B 5 FE W IE
ERAEARGE ZERBEERET
RIEVEBERDHZBIETFE
W o % EE 5 EWGIEZ RER DT
wmR

2008 2007
—EBENE | T LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAT

Up to 6 months =%~ E A 31,428 109,688
Over 6 months a7~ EA 9,274 3,930
40,702 113,618

At 31 December 2008, bill receivables of
approximately HK$18,502,000 (2007: Nil) were
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group (Note 33).
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ZEWEEE KB TRT - (EAR
FAREBRITEEZERR M=
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24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The bank deposits of approximately HK$494,952,000
(2007: HK$538,584,000) carry fixed interest rates
ranged from 0.1% to 4.1% (2007: 1.5% to 4.2%) and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group (Note 33).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank and
cash balances is an amount of approximately
HK$553,386,000 as at 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$340,907,000) denominated in RMB. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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24. B EWERITF R

17 53R & ek

#49494,952,0008 T (ZZEE & ¢
538,584,000/ 7T.) 2 $RITHF RN
F01%E41% (ZEE+F 1 1.5%
F4.2%) 2EEFEF LS - WEY
AFEFERRR - ANEE 2 BIEHF
RITFERBEERTFRITZER -
EAR FASERITEE 2 KT
GEXOE

WAEERBRITERKIBITRAS
ERoHERE-—HR-ZZENEF
+= A =+—H#)4553,386,000/%
TL (ZZZ L4 : 340,907,000 7T)
ZARMHIE - AR HIRBINE
AR R BISNE S HI R B R A E - &
ERIEEEATAHMBRER o
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. 8 5 M E i fE{~T I8

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the B SN FIE (REEAH) 2IRER
date of invoices, is as follows: AT -

2008 2007

—EBN\F | ZTTLHF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Current to 30 days BNEAZ=30H 296,765 180,736

31 to 90 days 31%90H 157,563 123,427

Over 90 days HAB90H 13,445 39,717

Trade payables 2 SR FRIE 467,773 343,880

Bills payables - secured FET ik — H IR 118,576 127,206

Other payables H b fE A FRIB 337,130 476,771

923,479 947,857
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

26. IRITHERX

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans RITE 1,639,374 1,438,905
Bank overdrafts RITBX - 106
1,639,374 1,439,011
Secured (Note 33) A (FEE33) 513,180 368,590
Unsecured i 1,126,194 1,070,421
1,639,374 1,439,011
The borrowings are EBREHBENT : —
repayable as follows:—
On demand or within one year  #ZEZRsi A —FER 842,491 355,962
In the second year F_F 706,774 493,970
In the third to fifth years, E=EFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMSE) 90,109 589,079
1,639,374 1,439,011
Less: Amount due for BT ZEAR
settlement within 12 months R EREE KA
(shown under current liabilities) (R E) & EIE F5IR) (842,491) (355,962)
Amount due for settlement + & A 1& 2| Bi (& E 5IE
after 12 months 796,883 1,083,049
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26. BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:—

26. SRITIE K (BB

REBEFRA T EEEZIRE
BUOE :

HK$ RMB usD EUR Total
BT AR#E Epv BT et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHETT FET FET FET
2008 —EENF
Bank loans RITER 629,435 377,786 621,732 10,421 1,639,374
2007 —EELHF
Bank loans SRITER 457,957 356,631 624,317 - 1,438,905
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 106 - - - 106
458,063 356,631 624,317 - 1,439,011

The ranges of effective interest rates at 31 December

were as follows:

Rt ZA=+—2ERNX&HE M
™

2008 2007

—EEN\E BT
Bank loans BITER 2.75% - 8.32% 4.25% - 8.02%
Bank overdrafts BITER - 7.00%

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$22,565,000
(2007: Nil) are arranged at fixed interest rate thus
exposing the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,616,809,000

(2007: HK$1,439,011,000) are arranged at floating
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group has entered into currency and
interest rate swaps to exchange USD loans of
approximately HK$621,732,000 and HK$ loans of
HK$430,000,000 to RMB loans and to exchange
variable rate interest of these loans to fixed rate
interest in order to hedge against the cash flow
currency and interest rate risks (Note 28).

#922,565,000/8 L (ZE T 4F -
) 2 RITERIRETEMNEREE - &
REBEZAFEMNERER - 4
1,616,809,0008 7L (ZEZ+F -
1,439,011,0007 7T) 2 tR1TfE BI%
FERNEERE  WASEEHRS
MM ERE - REBE D RIgtiER
ENLRETEFRBARBERRINL
#1621,732,0007% 7T, 12 430,000,000
BTz EBERMEEEE - UEZE
B2 Rz EERNE
18 1 3 A 3R A I B 1 2 @B (it
328) °



27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE

LEASES

Minimum lease
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27. B & TH & AR

Present value
of minimum

payments lease payments
BREHEENRK REHEENHREER
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BEENE | _ZTTLF | ZBBENE | _ZTZTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year —F R 17,151 21,060 16,103 18,461
In the second to fifth E_FEFRF
years, inclusive (BEERMF) 19,253 37,241 18,633 34,834
36,404 58,301 34,736 53,295
Less: future finance W AR IR
charges A (1,668) (5,008) N/A N/A
Present value of lease HERERE
obligations 34,736 53,295 34,736 53,295
Less: Amount due for B =@ A
settlement within AR HE R
12 months (shown ZFIE (A&
under current liabilites) &&E [ 77R) (16,103) (18,461)
Amount due for settlement + — 1@ A & %] £
after 12 months B8 2508 18,633 34,834

The lease terms range from 2 to 5 years.

At 31 December 2008, the average effective

borrowing rate was 4.0% (2007: 5.5%). All leases are

on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are

effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets

(Note 15) revert to the lessor in the event of default

and guarantees executed by two subsidiaries. All

finance lease obligations are denominated in HK$.

MESNF_E=0%F-

R-ZEZNF+-_A=+—H ¥
HEREEFERBLIOB(ZTZ L
F:55%) - IEHERAEEE
EEE - BEiEpIAHES I RE
K& o

AEEZRARERBER LER
BEAE (Wi15) HREE HAEA
R TR B A Rl B
FEAR 2 A o B A T A H A
BTLEE o
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28. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 8. HMERMEE, (&
(LIABILITIES) &)
Current Non-current
T E B
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BE/\F [ZTTL4 | BBNE [STTLA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT FExT FHET
Derivatives under HEHETETZ
hedge accounting FTET R
Cash flow hedges B3R e D
- Interest rate swaps — FZi= R 4,511 23,056 655 19,734
Cash flow hedges & E
- Foreign currency — N R
swaps (53,396) - (27,290) (190,812)
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28. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Interest rate swaps:

The Group used interest rate swaps to minimise its
exposure to cash flow risk of certain of its variable rate
HK$ and USD bank borrowings by swapping the
borrowings from variable rates to fixed rates. The
interest rate swaps and the corresponding borrowings
have the same terms and the Directors consider that
the interest rate swaps are highly effective hedging
instruments. Major terms of the interest rate swaps are
set out below:

BEMEmMEE, (&
&) (&
JESEE
REEGE ARG ER R
ST NESS S SR

ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ%liﬂ%’%ﬁﬂ%

ZRR RS TMER o FI 55 Hj g
ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁﬂﬂ%’ﬁ%%%ﬂ
R\ SEARZEHRTE - 7
e X BIRFREFNAT ¢

Swaps

B

Notional amount Maturity

HE Ep

USD20,000,000 semi-annually from May 2008 to May 2010

20,000,0005 7 H-_TT/\FRhAZE
“E-TENABYE

USD17,000,000 semi-annually from May 2008 to May 2010

17,000,000% 7T B-ZZ\FLAZE
“Z-ZFERABEF

USD40,000,000 semi-annually from May 2008 to May 2010

40,000,000% 7T B-TT/\EhAZE
“E-SERARYF

USD3,000,000 semi-annually from May 2008 to May 2010

3,000,000% 7T M-ZZEN\FRAZE
“I-ZHERABYEE

HK$273,000,000 semi-annually from February 2008 to August 2010
273,000,000/ 7T B_EEN\F_AZE

—E-ZE\ABXE
HK$157,000,000 semi-annually from February 2008 to August 2010
157,000,000/ 7 H-ZTN\F_A%

—T-TE)\AEEE

At the balance sheet date, fair value gain of
approximately HK$3,073,000 (2007: HK$37,675,000)
have been deferred in equity and are expected to
release to the consolidated income statement at
various dates in the coming two years after the
balance sheet date, the period in which the repayment
of bank interests are expected to occur.

USD 6 months Libor + 0.93% for 2.75%

275%EETAEARABTRERE +
0.93%5 #

USD 6 months Libor + 0.93% for 2.85%

2.85%EETAEARBRITRERE +
0.93%5 #

USD 6 months Libor + 0.93% for 3.25%

3.25%EETAEABHRITRERE +
0.93%5 #

USD 6 months Libor + 0.93% for 2.85%

285%EETAEARIBITRERE +
0.93%5 #

HK$ 6 months Hibor + 0.93% for 2.85%

2.85% BT AEABTERITRERE +
0.93%5 #

HK$ 6 months Hibor + 0.93% for 0.30%

0.30%EBTAEABTBRITRERS +
0.93%E5#

Fﬂ>

#£E R - #3,073,0008 7L (=%
THF W6%mm%m NS EY
HERERNIEL - WIEH R4
B REARRWE BIIERTERITHIRE
BHE)ETHEHBAREREE

o

A

2
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28. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/ S HMEmEE, (&8

166

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

The fair values of interest rate swaps are measured at
the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates.

Foreign currency swaps:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
foreign exchanges swaps designated as highly
effective hedging instruments in order to manage the
Group’s foreign currency exposure in relation to certain
foreign currency bank borrowings.

The terms of the foreign exchange swaps have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective

designated hedged items.

Major terms of these contracts are as follows:

&) (&

F s BB T EIR AR R RE S H
238 PR R AR il 5T M B IR 2 R 2R
ReMELRETE -

S

REER - NEBE TH5NE =
BERSEEREHMTA  ER
AEBEEETINERITER 2N
[\

SNt Hl 2 IR A BC & AR B fE B
HIRE Z IR BB -

ZEEHNIE/RIRUT :

Notional amount Maturity Swaps

k] L) B

USD20,000,000 2009-2010 USD1/RMB7.6589
20,000,000% 7T ZETENFET—ZF 1%/ AR¥7.6589
USD17,000,000 2009-2010 USD1/RMB7.6602
17,000,000% 7T —ETNFET—TF 1%70,/ AR#7.6602
USD40,000,000 2009-2010 USD1/RMB7.6284
40,000,000% 7T —ETNFET-TF 127/ AR#7.6284
USD3,000,000 2009-2010 USD1/RMB7.6070
3,000,000% 7T —ETENFEZT-TF 1%,/ AR#7.6070
HK$273,000,000  2009-2010 HK$1/RMB0.9732
273,000,000 7T —ETEAFE_T-ZTF 17871,/ AR¥0.9732
HK$157,000,000  2009-2010 HK$1/RMB0.9540
157,000,000 Z—ZTTNFE_T—ZTF 1787,/ AR#0.9540
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28. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

At the balance sheet date, fair value loss of
approximately HK$65,133,000 (2007:
HK$190,010,000) have been deferred in equity and
are expected to be released to the consolidated
income statement at various dates in the coming two
years after the balance sheet date, the period in which
the repayment of bank borrowings are expected to
occur.

The fair values of foreign currency swaps are
measured using quoted forward exchange rates and
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts.

During the year, gains and losses transferred from
equity to profit or loss are included in the following line

8. HMEmMEE (&

8) (A&

REEEH » 4965,133,0008 7T (ZF
Z+4F : 190,010,000/ 7T) A F &
EEENERNELT - YEABER
HHE BERRME BITERTRITIER
EEHM) ST HBBAGERGER

0

oF mF

SNES 1 B P E SR R HIE R R (E
RAREAKEIHNEZNEHER
2z W AR E o

REAR > AEZEREE RS2 W
REEEFAZE RBEERATIIIEA

items in the consolidated income statement: H :

2008 2007

—EENE —EEEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET AT
Other income E A (31,511) (802)
Finance costs (Note 8) B & AR (FF7E8) 13,738 14,231
(17,773) 13,429
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities

29 IRIETR TR BIE
TRAKREEAEEL F BETH

168

recognised by the Group. HEE -
Revaluation
Accelerated  of property
tax plantand Interestsin Withholding
depreciation  equipment  associates tax Total
MEHE ERUE. REEQAF
& BERRE 2B AENHE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FET TET TAR
At 1 January 2007 RZZE+F—-F—H - 17,726 - - 17,726
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM E AR 132 8,883 6,672 - 15,687
Credit to income statement FAkEE - (1,855) - - (1,855)
Exchange differences BREE - 279 - - 279
At 31 December 2007 i 3
+-A=1+-A 132 25,033 6,672 - 31,837
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (Note 17) Yok B 2 Al (E17) - 5,600 - - 5,600
Charge/(credit) to income statement M/ GEA) MR 15 (3,045) - 33,406 30,376
Exchange differences EREE - 449 - - 449
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF
+ZA=1+-H 147 28,037 6,672 33,406 68,262
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. i 7K
Number of
Shares Amount
RHEE ok |
Note ’000 HK$’000
s T FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares FRREE0.01E T
of HK$0.01 each 2 E B
At 1 January RZEZTLF
and —HA—BXK
31 December 2007 +=—A=+—H 1,000,000 10,000
Increase in authorised A TE BR AN N
share capital (a) 1,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZZTNF
+=—A=+—H 2,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BE#ZFTRHE -
Ordinary shares HREE0.0OTE T
of HK$0.01 each =il
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZTLF
—H—H 783,670 7,837
Issue of new shares BT RS (b) 200,000 2,000
Cancellation upon 5T 8 B [0 iR (0
repurchase of shares (© (6,198) 62)
At 31 December 2007 R-BTLF
+=ZA=+—8H 977,472 9,775
Issue of new shares BT ) 78,300 783
©) 34,189 342
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEBENF
+=ZA=+—8 1,089,961 10,900

BRHERAER AR ZBENFER
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 15 May 2008, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$10,000,000 to
HK$20,000,000 by the creation of additional
1,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 31 October 2007, 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$7.00 per
share as part of the consideration for acquisition of
100% shareholding of Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited (“Brilliant Circle”). The premium on
the issue of shares of approximately HK1,398,000,000
was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total
of 6,198,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$69,180,000. All of
these shares were cancelled. The premium payable on
repurchases of shares was charged to the share
premium account.

Pursuant to a shares subscription agreement dated
20 June 2008, the subscriber, Amcor Fibre
Packaging-Asia Pte Limited, subscribed for
78,300,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$8.94 per share on 31 July
2008. The premium on the issue of shares of
approximately HK$699,219,000 was credited to the
Company’s share premium account, net of share issue
expenses of HK$1,438,000.

On 31 October 2008, 34,189,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$5.85 per share as
part of the consideration for acquisition of 100%
shareholding of Purple Art (Note 17). The premium on
the issue of shares of approximately HK$199,664,000
was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

All shares, both issued and unissued, rank pari passu
in all respects at 31 December 2008.

30. K (&

B &L -

@

RZZZENFRA+HA - ARQF
5 T BR 2N #5188 3% 1,000,000,0008%
SHREEC.0O1B T ZRMH
10,000,000/ 7T #€ /i 220,000,000
BT

RZZEZLFTA=+—H" K
EEUER7.008 T T
200,000,0000% & i {E0.0178 7T
A E AR - R W R B R
EIRAER AR ([BHIER]) 256
Mt 2 B RAE - BITRD 28
8#91,398,000,000/% 7T & 5t AZK
RAZ AN HEEIR o

BE-ZZ+F+-A=+—H
LEFER - ARRRBZ AT
& £6,198,000f A2 Al 2 & @
% - 4K B 769,180,000/ 7T -
FZERMDH IR MEE - BOAK
0 2 FERE B B B B iR A

BEBRHA-ZTEZN\FAAZ-T
HzBROREBZE  REA
Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte
Limited® —ZEENFELA=+—
HZREETRS. 94BILRIE
78,300,000/% & f% E E0.017 7T
AR o BWITRM ZIEEL
699,219,000 L EET AR A A Z
R EER (B MBRETRMDES
1,438,000/ 7T) °

RZZEZNF+A=+—8"
34,189,000/% & f& T {50.01%5 7T
ZIERRIZERS.858 L
17 YE AW EEPUrple ArtZ 3B A%
(MH3E17) Z BB © BITRG
2 3% 18199,664,000/8 7T & 5t AR
RRIZBADHEIR o

R-EENF+-_A=+—H"
BT RAETRHESH
A ZB RS -



30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise
new debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to
reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (as detailed in Notes 26
and 27) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share
capital, share premium, minority interests, retained
earnings and other reserves) other than debit amounts
recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain a capital
structure with a lowest weighted average cost of
capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital at 31 December
2008 and at 31 December 2007 were 13.8% and
16.0%, respectively.
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30. fx A (48)

ARRERES 2 ARRRELRE
BIRSELEEEL ez X
BBECER AR PIFEEE M
B ER [E 5

AEBERTRBRIZL AR ERES
B o ARERT BN EE KA
MEEZAREBERELERRERE
RIEHRAE - RERFIHBEAR
B AEERERBRARRIKMNZ
BB BITH - Bk - B85
E - BORABEHERHEEEN
BIRE R

AEBREEHELAREAR L X
EREN BRLETIAERFE
BRIAERABREARGTE - BB FHEA
BERGIHAMF26K27) iR &
RBeEEWE - KAREXRB
ARG (WA - RD &
B PHBRRER  RBAFRE
&) - B BIR SR P MmN
mIERZ IR EER N o

RZZFZENF  AEEZRAFE—
TTLE - DS —EEXRN
e B S RN iS5 3w el - N
B-R_EENF+_-_A=+—H
A-_TZELF+-_A=+—HZE
BREHBEERLE DR /813.8%
516.0% °
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

30. &K (&)

2008 2007
—EBENE | _ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Total borrowings RIS 1,674,110 1,492,306
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : & RIS SEY (898,899) (811,038)
Net debt (EOrE R 775,211 681,268
Total equity i 5,575,214 4,092,606
Add: debit amounts mn: BEERERE
recognised in equity M A 2 T 72
relating to cash flow hedges 25 62,060 152,335
Adjusted capital KRB R 5,637,274 4,244,941
Debt-to-adjusted capital B ERA B E AN =X 13.8% 16.0%

The decrease in debt-to-adjusted capital was primarily
due to expansion in equity base through shares
placement during the year and continuous growth of
operating results.

The externally imposed capital requirements of the
Group is to maintain a total borrowings to
consolidated tangible net worth not higher than 1:1
(2007: 1:1) on 31 December 2008 in accordance with
the bank covenant imposed. As at 31 December
2008, ratio for total debt to consolidated tangible net
worth was 0.99:1 (2007:0.99:1).

EFREAEEARL R TREESR
RFRE B RSB B AR AER
M SR BERBERRAE -

INRIEMRAREZE S BRAIR
BRTZOE T NF+_A=
T-HZREREREERFEL
KRFBRTSI(CTTLEF
1:1) RZZENF+ZA=+—
A BEBRELEBEFELRA
099 :1(ZZFZFLF:099: 1) °



31.RESERVES
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31. %1

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF fzHEERAD
RESERVES
() Share premium account (i) BRiDREE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve (ii)
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign

exchange differences arising from the translation

of the financial statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Note 3(D) (i) to the

financial statements.

Hedging reserve (iii)
The hedging reserve comprises the effective

portion of the cumulative net change in the fair

value of hedging instruments used in cash flow

hedges pending subsequent recognition of the

hedged cash flows in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges

in Note 3(V) to the financial statements.

Statutory reserves (iv)
The statutory reserves, which are non-

distributable, are appropriated from the profit

after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

under the applicable laws and regulations in the

PRC.

RIEASBESAEE - ARF
BEERcESAHDIKT
ARBBRER - ERBERE DK
BB HMR - ARRIABRE
BEENAFEEBRETEE
HIZ B o

EE R 6k 0

fE X EERIETERE NG %
BB RRMEEZELZE
B o R E RV SRR
FE3D(i S 2 G ET R R
i@ °

HipEm
hfEEERRNRE REL
ZERTARFEREEEF
B2 BREY - AFRER R
B ZIRERE - SPREE
THIRAR B 15 ¥R R B S (V)T 8L
2R REBE TR BRE
I8 o

iR E R

PR DR ZEE ERTINA S
Bz B E A RRETEE
FRVRRR R R MR AR A 5 )38

Eo
N
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32. RELATED PARTY R.HAEBEANTRS

TRANSACTIONS

174

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

BRt EM B MR EME DA RES
Sh - REBRAFREZERBEA

related party transactions during the year: TRSHWET
2008 2007
—BENE | —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Sales to associates SHE THEE QA 369,135 219,946
Purchases from an associate Al — fEl Bt 2 R &) R BB 47,648 801
Purchases from Bz NGIET:
related companies 89,043 2,919
Rental income received WER— & AR 2
from a related company He A 2,697 512
Consultancy fee income WE—HEE QA2
received from an associate EEfE & U A 17,342 =
Notes: B 5
(@)  The sales to associates and purchases from an (@ HETHEATRR—FBEAD

associate and related companies were made under

normal commercial terms.

(b)  Rental income received is determined by mutually (b)
agreed term between the related company and the

Group.

(c) Consultancy fee income received is determined by (c)
mutually agreed term between the associate and the

Group.

(d)  An office premises occupied by the Group was (d)
provided by a related company at no cost.

(e) A substantial shareholder and/or his family member (e)
has beneficial interests in the abovesaid related

companies.

AIREERRRBIIRE — KRB
FRTETT ©

EUREE 2 YA TR % B E A A
SEAE B AR E 2 GEREE -

Y B A B UG A T 3% A% Bt
7] 817N 5 [ K[ E 2

o

N

&

AEBERNMRAETh—HE
BATEMERM -

—BEERRELHAKEKE
REMBEEAREAE R

o
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32. RELATED PARTY R.EEATRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
At balance sheet date, the following balances with REER - TH@EAT ZEH
related parties were included in: A
2008 2007
—BENFE | 2T LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT TAT
Trade and other receivables: B 5 & H AW FRIA
Associates iR l/NE] 63,236 78,435
Trade and other payables: B 5 &E M ENFRIE
Associates /N 83,591 69,604
A substantial shareholder —HREBRR 5,990 42 537
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, KBS RNRIREAEERR 28
interest free and repayable within 90 days. M BROHNEE
The amounts due to associates and a substantial ENBERRI N —REEREFKIE
shareholder are unsecured, interest free and have no AEER R NEETEENRE-

fixed term of repayment.
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33. BANKING FACILITIES 33.IR1TIEE

176

As at 31 December 2008, banking facilities of the
Group are mainly secured by the charge over certain
bank deposits (Note 24); property, plant and
equipment (Note 15); prepaid land lease payments
(Note 16), bills receivable (Note 23); corporate
guarantees given by the Company, certain
subsidiaries, an associate and a company beneficially
owned by a substantial shareholder; personal
guarantees executed by a substantial shareholder and
his family members and a property held by a
substantial shareholder of the Group.

At as 31 December 2007, banking facilities of the
Group are mainly secured by the charge over certain
bank deposits of the Group (Note 24); property, plant
and equipment (Note 15); corporate guarantees given
by the Company, an associate and a company
beneficially owned by a substantial shareholder;
personal guarantees executed by a substantial
shareholder and his family members and a property
held by a substantial shareholder of the Group.

RZEZENF+ZA=+—H ' &
SECRITEEXEZUAETHROTRF
B (ME24) - W%  BER
=i (MisE15) ~ TANAE L KIE
(FtzE16) - FEUER (F13E23) ~ &
NA) - BTHEBRR - —HEEQ
AR EBRETERRE=EEZ—
MARREBZARER BH—BE
ZRERERKEKEEL 2 EARE
REAEE—ZTEZRFEREZY
VR -

RIEZ+F+-A=+—H K
%@Zﬁﬁﬁ%$£u$%@%¥
RITFER LR (fsE24)

B K& (fFEE15) ~ A
MEtE AR REA— %IE&?E
HHz —HRRREZABER -
BH—2EFEZERFREREKEEL
ZEABEREAER—ZEERRE
B WEEER -
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. 7 I
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had the following RZZEZENFT+ZA=+—H" K
commitments: B AENT -
A. OPERATING LEASE A BEHRERIE

COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office and factory
premises under operating lease arrangements.
The original lease terms for the office and factory
premises range from one year to fifteen years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

A ER RS AT E R AR
ETHAZRBREDE - A
WAZREENEL FiTEH
AF—ETAF -

RIBNAIREHE S HER N
ZARSZEHESLEMT -

2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT THTT
Within one year —FR 21,319 21,098
In the second to F_EERF
fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEME) 70,374 70,597
After five years HF% 105,488 123,645
197,181 215,340
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BExKiE
2008 2007
—EBN\F | —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T THETT
Contracted but 23] 4
not provided for: BAREEME
Acquisition of property, BEMF
plant and equipment BB K& 70,790 33,024
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2007: Nil).

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT -

~ N
=] ‘; '71&

—Z /ARNN

T_:E

395.

R-ZEEZNEFE+-_A=+—H =K
EEVHETMNERRAEE(CZE
+F E) -

36. 70 BDE Y
FEEHAR -RHIB

Manufacturing of
Printing of transfer/laminated paper Corporate and
cigarette packages and laser film unallocated Elimination Consolidated
a8 /8584
BEAEDF REFERE LERKIR H# S
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRENE | CERLE |CRYNF | CTTLE |Z¥RN\F | SERLF |CRFNE | STTLE |2BRNF | STTLE
HK$'000 |  HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HKS000 | HK$000 |  HK$'000
FART TAR FART TAR FHR TAR FEn TR FEx TET
REVENUE [V§:3
External sales HIMEE 2,796,994 | 1830536 | 325890 | 301,785 - - - - | 3,122,884 | 2,132,321
Inter-segment sales HREHE 99,437 8770 | 134,018 | 128443 - - | (293455) (187213) - -
Total 5y 2,896,431 | 1839306 | 459,908 | 430,228 - - | (283455) (137213)] 3,122,884 | 2,132,321
RESULTS E3
Segment resuts PHUEE 633,714 | 389,240 11,214 43,766 - - - - | 644928 | 433,006
Unallocated expenses RARRX (70,537)  (65223)
Other income Hi s 85,816 53,331
Finance costs BENK (62,855)  (24,319)
Share of proft of associates [EfEBE AR EA 172,229 71,152 - - 649 - - - | 172878 71,152
Income tax expenses MERAY (147,160) (68,044 )
Profit for the year REERF 623,070 399,903
ASSETS RE
Segment assets AHEE 2,607,081 | 2234220 | 450,755 | 417,501 - - - - | 3,057,786 | 2,651,723
Interests in associates REEDRZ R 372,555 | 321,209 - - 795 - - - | 373,350 | 321,209
Unallocated assets FROREE 4,926,604 | 3,810,903
Consolidated total assets GABKE 8,357,740 | 6,783,835
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilties AHERE 1,243,254 | 921,996 90,274 | 162,500 - - - - | 1,333,528 | 1,084,586
Unallocated liabilities FARAE 1,448,998 | 1,606,643
Consolidated total liabilties RABER 2,782,526 | 2,691,229
OTHER INFORMATION Hb &R
Capital expenditure ERRR 115,123 | 238,408 57,186 8377 3,881 2,513 - - | 176,190 | 249,208
Depreciation and amortisation 78 [ & 112,197 53,168 18,715 13,601 5,710 4,035 - - 136,622 70,804
Impaiment losses on receivables & IE Z RS - 5,707 1,975 1,991 12,711 20 - - 14,686 7,718
Write down of inventories HREE 995 2,960 13,638 (133) - - - - 14,633 2,827
Other non-cash expenses other B 17E R % 3
than depreciation AShZ £ fty
and amortisation FREHR 5,528 2,210 13,216 - 17,508 - - - 36,342 2,210
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

37.

(continued)

SECONDARY REPORTING FORMAT -

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are

derived from customers and operations based in the

PRC and accordingly, no further analysis of the

Group’s geographical segment is disclosed.
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36. 7 #E L (4F)

REERFX - HESE

REEBI% W M EERBLR
TEZEPRER - FtI EE—
FHREAEEZWESHEHD
M e

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 7. FEZWNBE AR
Issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ ownership
registration registered interest/profit Principal
Name and operation capital sharing activities
BETR
Bl BERE/ EBiE#EEES
£ AR E XL HEMEA vill SR TEXEH
Direct Indirect
B &
AMVIG Group Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Islands (“BVI) HK$1,000
BREBERRAA EBRAHS Li@A%1,000% T REZR
(IBvi))
AMVIG Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
HK$6,060,100
BRHRERR DA N TRk REZR
6,060,100/ 7T
BB Jinhuangshan PRC Registered capital - 52.64% Printing of cigarette
(Note a) USDb7,622,800 /37.64% packages
#E SR (MEa) HE AR BIERE R
7,622,8005 7T
BCPPL BVI Ordinary USD10,000 - 100% Investment holding
SRERI B 5 BVI EAAR10,000% 7T REEK
Beijing LMPP PRC Registered capital - 83% Printing of cigarette
(Note b) USD13,000,000 packages
I RREH (Fi5tb) FE AMER BREaEHR
13,000,000% 7T
Bellgate International Limited BVI Ordinary . 100% Investment holding
HK$509,040,001
BRR REZR
509,040,001/ 7T
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37.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

7. TEWNBRRA] (&

(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ ownership
registration registered interest/profit Principal
Name and operation capital sharing activities
BETR
MR, BERE/ EEREESE
8 MR EEGH HEfEA BB B TEEH
Indirect
%
Brilliant Circle Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Investment holding
HK$2,000,000
EBBRER LA Bk Ak REER
2,000,000/ 7T
Brilliant Circle BVI Ordinary USD1 100% Investment holding
BEER LERIZET REER
Charm Profit Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding
BREEERAT G TERIET REER
Dongguan AMVIG Industrial PRC Registered capital 100% Printing of cigarette
Co., Ltd. (‘Dongguan AMVIG") USD15,000,000 packages and
(Note c) manufacturing of
transfer/laminated
paper
SAMEEXERAF i E At ER BEARKDR R
(IREER]) (o) 15,000,000% & ELYE i3
Dongguan KWG Colour Printing PRC Registered capital 55% Printing of cigarette
Co., Ltd * (“DG KWG") (Note d) HK$40,000,000 packages
SERVEHERDR FE AMER BEBEHR
(TREZR]) (H&d) 40,000,0007% 7T
Famous Plus Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 55% Investment holding
HREBBRRA EE EimAk100/8 T REER
Glory Express International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% Investment holding
HEBERER LN EE Eako# T REER
HZ Weicheng PRC Registered Capital 100% Printing of cigarette
(Note €) USD10,000,000 packages
TNER (Hi5te) FE A ER BRIk
10,000,000 7T
Kunming World Grand PRC Registered capital 100% Printing of cigarette
(Note 1) USD7,500,000 packages
EHEE (M) FE A ER BEAEDR
7,500,0003 7T
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37.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

7. TEWNBRRA] (&

(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ ownership
registration registered interest/ profit Principal
Name and operation capital sharing activities
BETK
3y BERE/ EEREER
% MR E R HEMEX BHEszEA  FEER
Direct Indirect
B &
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Singapore Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
Packaging Pte Ltd. 5G$85,495,870
N TER REZR
85,495,870%f Al T
Mattie Hologram PRC Registered capital - 100% Manufacturing of
(Note g) EURO3,000,000 laser film
B2 8 (fig) HE AfMER B BERE
3,000,0008 7T
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 - 100% Investment holding
TEBRIET REZR
Qingdao LMPP PRC Registered capital - 60% Printing of cigarette
(Note h) USD15,515,000 packages
EzE EELGED) FE ERIE-E BEA KR
15,515,000 7T
SZ Guilian PRC Registered capital - 100% Investment holding
(Note i) HK$9,600,000
Y E B (P D) HE FMER REER
9,600,000/ 7T
SZ Kecai * PRC Registered capital - 99.31%/99%  Printing of cigarette
(note ) RMB144,870,000 packages
RIIBER * (H5E) HE AfMER BIEa R
AR 144,870,000
Union Virtue International Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 - 100% Investment holding
FERRERA A TER1ET REZR
Victory Honest (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
B R BRAR EE L@R1ET REZR
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37.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

7. TEWNBRRA] (&

Issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ ownership
registration registered interest/profit Principal
Name and operation capital sharing activities
BETR
A& HMERE/ EEREER
% R KR HEMER BB EAL TEXK
Direct Indirect
E# i
World Grand Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
HK$13,333,333
(E3 EE EBR REER
13,333,333 7T
XF Jinfeihuan PRC Registered capital - 79.6% Printing of cigarette
(Note k) USD3,000,000 packages
BESRIR (PR FE il %N 2B EN
3,000,000 7T
Xian Hologram # PRC Registered capital - 51% Manufacturing of
(Note ) RMB7,140,000 laser film
ARAK () FE AftER B ST IR BE
AR 7,140,000
ZT Antong * PRC Registered capital - 80%/ 51% Manufacturing of
(Note m) USD1,000,000 transfer/laminated
paper
Rz ¢ (M 5m) FE AftER BY /g
1,000,000% 7T
Notes: B 5

(@) BB Jinhuangshan is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 21 years

commencing from 22 October 1997.

(b)  Beijing LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 50 years

commencing from 12 May 1995.

(c) Dongguan AMVIG is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
with an operating period of 50 years commencing from

23 February 1993.

(d) DG KWG is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an
operating period of 25 years commencing from 24

December 2007.

HREELUATIIAERLED
¥ o gEHH-ANEFETAZ
T HERAH21E -

ERBEHARTIIAERLED
¥ KEHH-ANDFRAT
— Bt B0 -

EERRANERALE B8
HR—AWN=F-_A-+=H#&
& B EI50%F ©

REGRAIEEBEDLSE K&
R - +F+ A =—+mMH
HeEt AR5 o



37.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(€)

HZ Weicheng is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with
an operating period of 30 years commencing from 30
March 1996.

Kunming World Grand is a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise with an operating period of 20 years
commencing from 7 March 2002.

Mattie Hologram is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
with an operating period of 50 years commencing from
21 June 2004.

Qingdao LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 30 years
commencing from 19 May 1993.

SZ Guilian is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 22
December 1990.

SZ Kecai is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 10 years
commencing from 21 July 2008.

XF Jinfeihuan is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 15 years
commencing from 31 July 2000.

Xian Hologram is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 10 years
commencing from 12 April 2000.

ZT Antong is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise with an operating period of 10 years
commencing from 19 May 2001.

The English names of this company represents
management’s best efforts at translating the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have
been registered.

BRHERAER AR ZBENFER

Notes to the

Financial Statements
M ERMEE

7. TEWNBRRA] (&

)

MINERBINEBELE » £28
Hpm— A hAFE=A=1+HEs
A HIB04E -

EREEZANIEBELE K&
A -ZTT _F=-AtHETA
HA20%E o

BHEEANPBELE K&
A —ETNFE A+ —AR
&t ABHI504F o

SEERERAEPINAELED
¥ KEBA-NVNL=FRAT
N B A BIS0F -

FUNEHAIEBELE K&
AN ZEF+=-_A=+=H
#BET A HI204F o

FYR B oA B -
N g
A& A 107 -

BERERBRBRINEELED
¥ KEHHR-_TTTFLAZS
+— B AH15F -

BARARBTIEERERE
REHH _ZTTENMA T H
At AHI0F -

MEBZBESTIICELEDRE
REMH—_TT-FHATNA
At AHI0F -

FERRAB|MAGEMEE - K
KX AW HEEERBEESX
HEBNEFMAAK
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38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 38. i 38 B 75 <
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and BHHRER_ZEZNFOARE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 ExemBRAETE -
April 2009.
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The following is a summary of the results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in

Notes 1 and 2 below:

BRHERAER AR ZBENFER

Summary of Financial

Information

MEBHER

UTRASEZXEREERAEME
To¥ AT M k1 e 2P il B AR AR Y

(Restated)
(&%)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—RRN\F | 2TLE  -TRRE  —TTRE CTIME
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET FAEL FAET FAET FEL
RESULTS £
Turnover BERE
Cigarette packages BEAE 2,796,994 | 1,830,536 885,339 132,302 97,668
Transfer/laminated paper #@iI8E R
and laser film R iE 51 IR 325,890 301,785 237,235 251,211 234,702
3,122,884 | 2,132,321 1,122,574 383,513 332,370
Profit before share of Rt EEBE AT
profit of associates i A Al 2 0 A 597,352 396,795 228,154 110,956 80,259
Share of profit of associates ~ FE/5 B & 2 &) Al 172,878 71,152 69,608 76,018 38,342
Profit before tax A A 770,230 467,947 297,762 186,974 118,601
Income tax expenses PrET R X (147,160) (68,044) (30,423) (2,135) (7,715)
Profit for the year REZ T 623,070 399,903 267,339 184,839 110,886
Attributable to: A&7 LG -
Equity holders of the Company AR A1 EA A 467,303 353,837 250,347 181,353 110,815
Minority interests DY RS 155,767 46,066 16,992 3,486 71
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ER&E
Non-current assets FEREEE 6,048,838 | 4,660,299 1,833,858 458,644 291,215
Current assets MEBEE 2,308,902 | 2,123,536 989,979 480,072 424,503
Current liabilities mEE & (1,871,458) | (1,350,697) (495,503) (255,370) (339,448)
Non-current liabilities EnBEE (911,068) | (1,340,532) (31,087) (28,780) (15,970)
Total equity BnEE 5,575,214 | 4,092,606 2,297,247 654,566 360,300
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MEBHER

Notes:

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2004 have been prepared on a proforma combined basis as
if the Group structure immediately after the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the year.
The assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2004 have been prepared as if the Group structure
immediately after the Group Reorganisation had been in
existence as at that date.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
27 November 2003 and became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group as a result of the
Group Reorganisation which was completed on 10 March
2004.

GEE

AEBREZ-_ZTZTNF+-_A=+—
ALEFEZEENRBEZSAHELR
B MINBRBEEREATKECAEE
ARAEREFEEL—ERE - A5H
R-ZZNMF+_A=+—HZEER
BENBREEBEBREHREB I AEESE
BERZBHMGEENRR -

ARTAR-FE=F+—A-+LAE
WEHSEMAT - LEAR BB
FZATARRZEEEETRAKAE
ERERTEARNZRRAR -
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